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“western voicecofi President. Gerald:-R:: Ford, who- recently
~ ‘granted Nixon a.full, free; and absolutapardonacx»"

PN R e D N P M S TURMREA M Bt bt Bt Tk i BATE SA T TR WREBETI0 t ni Ms e B TR el

thef pomographxc publishing trade:
It'was:to Gerald-Ford that Nixon: turned to head,o{iht

'mhani leoxms out of office:but not out of power.
‘We believe that the source:of this-power resides in .
over:5,000 hours of: secretly-taped, candid conver- .-
sationsi between Nixon,

tapes, the most:celebrated, aside from Nixon's;:is.the Mid-~

,)VV;,

Nixon’s ultimately regaining: control of. the-White  House Nxxom It was not unusual for Ford .to speak with Nixon at

.tapes. The available explanations—Ford’s:simple-Christian -least:once a week, and.one of Ford’s White House:aides
_charity, or his:stupidity, or both-~have lefi. even the:most -considers this a modest estimate. Pages:from President Nix--

gullible among:us unpersuaded. We believe the doubts will on’s-*“Daily Diary” for April, 1973, show.that Nixon did
continue: until-those in a positionto pursue:-the truth—  not: hesitate. to place:telephone calls to Ford- at-a:time

notably the Congress and Special Prosecutor Leon Jaworski ‘when: the Watergate problem was growing in intensity. {n

—get around to the most obvious source.of information on  fact, during his confirmation hearings, Ford admitted having
reasons for the pardon—the hours of tapes between Nixon discussed with President Nixon the break-in at the Deme-
and Ford, and between Nixon and powerful politicians in -cratic National Committee, after it occurred: *I-cananot
both parties. It may be that nothing less, and nothmg else, remember whether it was one or more [occasions], butwe
will explain the mystery Sl - have discussed the burglary of the Democratic Party 5.
S Ford went on to say that both he and Nixon called-it-a

When Congressman Gerald Ford made one of his fre- “stupid, naive operation.” What is important is not how
quent visits. to the Oval Office, he was meeting not only = Ford chose to characterize the conversation in hindsight, but
Richard M. Nixon, president of the United States, his friend  the fact that such conversations took place, that they exist
for over ‘25 years, but, more important, the titular head and are retrievable from the White House tapes. Further-

of the Republican party, whose creation Gerald Ford is. more, Ford admitted during the same hearings that he may-

Ir was through the Republican party that Gerald Ford had have had discussions both in person and by phone with
been azble to achieve rewards for his abilities as a lawyer Nixon on the question of support payments for the Water-
and a legislator. Nixon was the embodiment of everything gate burglars. If so, these are also on tape.

thay Ford was in awe of, or felt indebted to. For a man Ford, according to one of his long-time assistants, regular-

whose political ambitions were already satisfied, working 1y attended the Tuesday meetings at the White House be-

as a minority leader under Nixon gave Ford an opportunity tween Republican leaders and Nixon. Ford's appointment

1o demonstrate his loyalty and his gratitude—both to his log for other meetings with Nixon is not available, but his

party and to the president. No assignment which Nixon aide says they were not infrequent. During the 29-month
described as essential to the interests of the country or the taping period, Gerald Ford met with Nixon on at least 8%
party was too demanding or too distasteful. separate occasions; during the same period, Ford spoke to

It was Ford who, in November, 1969, threatened the Nixon over the phone well over a hundred times. By the
impeachment of Justice William O. Douglas, with the ad- most conservative estimate, the White House, ¢igpe record-
minisiration’s blessings. (At the same time, Nixon’s nomi- ings contain over twenty hours of cand.pdggonve ﬁan be-
nation of Clement Haynsworth to the Supreme Court was _tween Gerald Ford and Richard Nixon..;

under severe attack by liberals.)) After Haynsworth’s de- The last thing that Gerald Ford w @d have sus@%wd
fzar, Ford delivered one of the ugliest attacks on a sitting | as he sat with the president in the Ovali@ffice or the Bxecu-
j ustice ever made by an American politician, suggesting / tive Office Building office, or in the Cabinet R(mm or
th i1 Douglas represented international gambling interests, \ chatted with him on the phone, was thabhzg every word
political radicals, and *“Mr. Ralph Ginzburg and his friends Lwas being secretly tape-recorded.

thréatened-investigation-of - the- break-in at the Democratic-
, his:aides, and: the leaders . National Committee headquarters by the House Committee
- of both- pohncal‘i‘pames ‘These:tapes: lie; for:thezmoment, _‘on-Banking and Currency, chaired by Congressman: Wright
i a well-guarded room in-a government. buﬂdmg ‘in-down- .. Patmmxof Texas.-Patman told us on September: 9;:1974; that .- |}
~.town Washington;D.C. Among the-many- voices on’ these .- #Gerald Ford was asked by the president to get with Connally ~
to'get 'something o me>When Fordiwas:questioned about .}
‘this by the- House Committee on ‘the' Judiciary, during his |}
“confirmation hearings last November, he admitted that-he .
-z Even somexofiFord’s. most- patient: observers: were “out-  “had:worked to-forestall the mvestlgatzon, but he denied any
raged and-mystified; not only-by:the: fact-of: the pardon *;improprietyz;.:,k "
and its timing;:but by the accompanying: deal that ensured .:¢Fordalso -had- frequent telephone conversatlons with
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... Haldemm s plan required the preswsvation of the Whlte House
tape,§;,‘ a presidential pardon for Nixon, a pardon for himself...

“he secret White House taping system, which was

. chief of staff, was in operation between February,
‘Room, in his private office in the E.O.B., and .
arate automatic system recorded all of Nixon’s telephone -

conversations. With the excéption of the Cabinet Room’s, all’

as frequemly done'

se manywoﬁthexr mterests ccmclded with hi
it was:Haldeman whom:- they feared. Most:of what leon
knew,: and- what was: on’'tape; was known-to Haldeman.|
They -were.in the hands:-of a. man who owed them nothmg
and tovwhom they could ‘offer nothing.’

- characteristics of remevahx}xty and independent verification -
necessary;to transform them into a potent political weapon.
Comprehensive as they are, though, the tapes are not

a totally=efficient instrument for the retrieval of politi- -
cally damaging information.: The sheer  quantity of tape,
over 5,000 hours, which would take one man, listening for
eight hours a day, a year and eight months to review, pre-
vents ready access to. specific material. Recorded and stored
chronologically, the reels of tape, identified by date and
location, offer only random, if interesting, information.
Even President Nixon’s “Daily Diary,” a log which records

- every waking minute of Nixon’s day, regardless of signifi-
cance (“Phone call: 12:32 to 12:33, The President Talked
to His Daughter Tricia”), does not describe the subject of

the subject of almost every one of Nixon's conversations, as
well as the time, place, and parties involved. It is also nec-
essary to know what one is listening for before one can kn
where to listen. Only Nixon and Haldeman have such
knowledge; but by August 7 of this year, only Haldeman, in
; a telephoned blackmail threat to Alexander Haig at the
White House, had the desperate courage to use it.

nce Nixon was out of office, Haldeman’s plan for
!1 avoiding punishment would have three sequential
stages: an arrangement which ensured the preser-
; vation of the White House tapes and access to their
| indexes; a presidential pardon for Nixon; a presidential
i pardon for himself.

Even though Haldeman (along with Ehrlichman) was

_installed on the orders of H. R. Haldeman, Nixon's -

1971, and July, 1973. At Haldeman’smdirection,;
mrophones were placed in Nixon’s Oval Office, in : Kissinger, must surely have had a primary role in the selec
. tion of Haig as his successor, and in the selection of the
in his quarters and office'at Camp David_An entxrely sep-. - lawyer who would advise the president on Watergate mat

the. tapeaiax:e the soleyprcclsa record Bu&. these men could - from an immediate. pardon for My 'leon s aldes in’ genaral

conversations. Haldeman’s personal logs, however, describe-

j’x'-eg‘retfuliy let go by Nixon on April 30, 1973, he hac

remained at the White House through July, using 2 gues

office in the E.O.B. Haldeman, who had originally selectec

Alexander Haig to be a National Security Adviser aidefor

“ters, J. Fred Buzhardt. Haig became the White House chie

_of staff on May 4; Buzhardt came to the White House siz
the concealed microphones were voice-activated. The micro-- days later. ‘
phones in the Cabinet Room were actzvated only at the re-"~

The pardon which was ﬁnally implemented by Ford or

- September 8, 1974, was a copy of a plan submitted by Ha!

deman shortly before Nixon resigned his office. Haldeman®

p}an coupled amnesty for Vietnam war evaders with a pardot

~for Nixon’s chief aides and urged the president to pardor

hxmsaif-—-—'You can do it!” This plan was not implementec

by Nixon before he resigned, of course; it was Gerald Forc
ho carried. out the plan shortly after taking office by firs.
oating a trial balloon on amnesty before the Veterans .o
Foreign Wars convention, and finally-by the pardon’ itself
The only plan change—and it is a significant one—was tha.
in.the aftermath-of the Nixon pardon, Ford had to retrea:

and pamcuiarly for Haldeman

étory recently descnbed } Fred Buzhardt as an “mteres{mg

) -complex person who likes to maneuver.” Harry Dent, :

_ long-time political associate of Nixon’s, is more to -the
‘point: “If you ever need the dxmest deed done wzthout g
-trgee, Fred’s your man.’

< Buzhardt made two pre-pardon attempts. to transfct thé

V - {White House tapes to San Clemente. The first occurred os
Smce'pohtmans never reduce their quesnonable dealmgs
to writing; only the White House tapes have the essential =

August 10 and was stopped by Ford’s attorney, Benton L
ecker. On August 14, Buzhardt Yied in announcing tha
“with the concurrence of Special Prosecutor Jaworski, he
(Buzhardt) and James St. Clair, President Nixon’s attorney
had determined that the White House tapes and document:
belonged to Nixon and would be immediately returned tc

een consulted, and President Ford, just leammg of the
ecision, countermanded the order.

J. Fred Buzhardt remgned on August 13, but cmmar‘
to published reports, he is still at the White House. Th:

Ean Clemente. On August 15, Jaworski denied that he hac
b

newly minted press secretary, Ron Nessen, told us tha

Buzhardt is showing the new presidential counsels “how
the legal offices operate, and bringing them up to date o
pending legal matters.” When asked whether this has to de
with Watergate or Watergate-related subjects, Nessen saic
no, that the White House has a lot of other legal work. At
far as it is known, Buzhardt was. hired to work only or
Watergate or Watergate-related matters and would hardly
be in position to render advice on concerns he knows noth

g or next to nothing about. So the question remains: wha:
is Buzhardt doing at the White House and why isn’t any
body talking about him?

t is important to unde; and houf) cessary Buz
hardt and Haldeman ‘%»cre to each" ther as the

investigation into pre&ldennal pammpatxon ir
Watergate and Watergate-related ctifes became
more intense. Haldeman's dismissal had been a cosmetic
one, with both he and Ehrlichman praised by Nixon a:
“two of the finest public servants” he had ever known. Bu
Halideman had seen how readily Nixon sacrificed Mitchel




~a {riend, a partner in his law firm, and twice manager of
Nixon's campaign

fered up when the going got tougher. It would be vital for
Haldeman to keep the incriminating tapes and documents
out of the prosecutors’ hands. With Haig and Buzhardt on
the scene, menwho had no way of knowing which evidence
was more or-less incriminating to Haldeman and Nixon, .
. Haldeman’s- guidance  in - determining - whether or<not to .
answer the subpoenas of. the special prosecutor, the Senate

T

_basis, and.since:Buzhardt was the one to give orders in

| - regard o the;tapes oor-documents;; Haldeman :had. to work

* through Buzhardt to protect both. his and Nixon’s. interests.

- .Buzhardt’ sepecwer, at the “White- House: mcreased -as time -
‘of-

butieve
_deman- knew" precxsely where: to:
agmg ewdence, and therefore which evidence to suppress. -
o As Bemstmn and Woodward record in Alf the President’s .
.than: s1x months, he - [I—Ea:g} and Henry

;}Mganongglialdemén Ehrlichman,. and .Colson: - Instead,
_ the president had built his legal defense in concert with the .
.. three and. had.continued to meet with them- and talk with

1974, aad:althwgh Colson.was .to defect. in early June,
‘1974, theldefection madew}laldeman s. presence, if only
through Buzhardt, all the more necessary. The White House
was moving t toward the most critical juncture in- Watergate.
- Jaworski-was:taking his demands.for evidence to the. Su-

had subpoenaed scores of -tapes, was drafting its articles of
: unpeachmem. Buzhardt’s heart attack on June 13, then, was

hardt’s absence must have been intolerable. As. if respon-
ding to these needs, Buzhardt, who had had a serious heart
attack, returned to the White House within four weeks.

So, through. the summer of 1974, the Nixon and Halde-
man defenses remained linked xdeologxcally, pohtxcally, and
perhaps cnmmaily Sl

Access to the White House. tapes was iumted to Nixon

hardi, and Rose Mary Woods. Each time a tape was re-

moved from the vault, an entry was made in a lending

by John Bennett or Raymond C. Zumwalt, noting the time

of the request for a specific tape, the person who requested
i, the length of time the tape was kept out, and the time
i and day the tape was returned. Additionally, the recipient

of a tape had to sign a receipt for it.

On Thursday, November 15, 1973, Gerzald Ford was
scheduled to begin testifying before the House Committee
on the Judiciary hearings into his nomination to be vice-
president of the United States. At the hearings, Ford was
questioned about his past contacts with President Nixon,
including discussions with the president. His answers were
brief and general. The hearings went from November 15
through November 26.

On November 14, 1973, Fred Buzhardt had obtained from
John Bennett tapes of meetings which President Nixon had
held 32 months before, in early March, 1971, On November
19. Buzhardt returned these tapes to the vault, according to
Bg'metz s lending file. On Friday, November 30, Fred Buz-

ORI S L TP PIEE SO T « 2eve

Watergate: committee, and.the-House Judiciary: Committee . _
was absolutely:essential. Since Buzhardt, as-special counsel -
to the president on Watergate, had nominal responsibility .
for ccnducun& the White House defense on a day—to-day -

listen- for the most damw

them onthe telephone.” This was-the situation.in January, |

and Haldeman and later to Nixon, Haldeman, Fred Buz-{

S

dt requested and received nine tapes for the same period.

s—‘when the going got tough.” He could }Gerald Ford met President Nixon on days which correspond
never rule out entirely the possibility that he might be of--

o at least two and possibly more of the tapes requested for
eview by Buzhardt. (John Barker, spokesman for the spe-
cial prosecutor’s office, told us that his office was aware that

-Buzhardt had reviewed these tapes, which were never sub- |
-.poenaed, but he declined to comment on the implications.”

It has been reported, however, that the Watergate prosecu-
stors regard the ultimate tapes agreement as a quzd pro quo h
-for the pardon ) .t
ow, therefore I Gerald R Ford Presxdent of the
United States . . . have granted and by these pres—-
ents do grant a full, free, and absolute pardon unto -
Richard Nixon, for all offenses against the United
- States which, he, Richard Nxxon, has committed or may have -
" committed or taken part in during the period from }anuasy
20, 1969, through August 9, 1974.” -

Rarely have so few. presidential words accomphshed 0.

;much, President Ford not only pardoned Nixon for federal:

-.crimes which he did commit, and which are known, or sus--

: pected ‘but for crimes which.he may have committed. but.
',,,,whxch are snll unknown..

ttomeys for Haldeman, Ehrlmh»

can’t be brought to ma] S ERLT LA
“:1f these subtle but serious consxderatmns escaped Ford
-a a Yale Law School graduate, they certainly would not have

: ~escaped the notice of the lawyers advising Haldeman or of |
Athe two attorneys who negotiated the pardon: President

Ford’s personal attorney, Benton L. Becker, and Herbert ].

Mller Jr., Nixon’s attorney.

. Benton L. Becker, a former Iustzce Department Iawyer

- under Attorney General John Mitchell, is currently under in-
- vestigation for income tax evasion, for which the Justice De-
preme Court,’the House Commxttee on the ]udxcxary, which i

artment has just recormmended his indictment. Becker has
.*dn interesting history. In 1970, he was retained by Ford and

. several other congressmen to handle the legal matters in their
a blow to everyone around Nixon. For. Haldeman, Buz- . attempt to fmpeach Justice Douglas. One of Becker’s jobs
was to develop evidence damaging to Douglas. To that end,
Becker sought to interview Louis Wolfson, who was con-

- nected to the Parvin Dohrmann Co., which was in serious:

legal difficulties, and whose founder Albert Parvin, was a
casual acquaintance of Justice Douglas. The implicit thrust

of Becker’s letter requesting an interview with Louis Wolf-
son was that in exchange for information damaging to Jus-
tice Douglas, Becker would seek to help Wolfson out of his

legal difficulties.

Herbert Miller, Nixon’s attorney, has the dubious disting-
tion of being the lawyer who defended former Attorney
General Richard Kleindienst, and who succeeded not only
in negotiating a plea to a misdemeanor when Kleindienst's:

-crime of perjury was actually a felony, but in managing to.

have sentence passed by a judge who suspended Klein~
dienst’s meager 30-day sentence and then praised him as “a
dedicated public servant.” Miller has the further distinction
of having represented William O. Bittman. Bittman, who
was the attorney for Watergate burglar Howard Hunt, had.
received $75,000 in a Manila envelope §é€'t€&ly Ieft by An-
thony Ulasewicz next to a phone ‘booth in ¢he lobby of
Bittman’s office buxldmg Bittmar claimed that he saw noth-
ing suspicious in this method of fee collectnm and, rep--
resented by Miller, was never evél{'indicted. -

With the nation’s finest and mosthighly :espected consti--
tutional lawyers willing to render public service, with the
entire Justice Department certainly available for such a
historic and delicate task, these two men, Benton L. Becker

and Herbert J. Miller Jr., working in secret with Richard
'ét obtamed the same tapes at 1:25 p.m. He returned \ Nixon, Ronald Ziegler, and Gerald Ford, negotiated the

Aataile ~F tha mnardan
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...When Haldeman told Haig he ‘could send leon to jail,” h:
intention was to frighten Haig rather than to blackmail Nixon...

“n order for Nixon-to secure a full, free, and abso-
te pardon before he was indicted, without having
o admit any criminal guilt, at a time when over prison term generates. For those who are servi
6 per cent of the public was opposed to a pardon, . sentences, and particularly for those who have be
and:-at¥a’ time when a pardon -‘would gravely -injure the-“-indicted and face prison sentences from Judge Sirica’s con
Republican party in the: coming November elections and .——especially Haldeman, who faces a possible 25-year s:
severely:handicap Ford’s attempt to win a full term in 197§, - tence——~Watergate is practically- a life and death matt
Nixonizand Haldeman .would have had to possess an.im-] Given the resources still remaining to Haldeman—the tap
mensely powerful weapon: If such-a- weapon existed any-} -their indexes, and his knowledge—-no one should -dot
wherej;it. would exist-in:the White. House tapes~-conver- { :Haldeman’s determination to convert a defeat into victo
muomwhxch could-be politically fatal to. Ford, or to other ¥ Haldeman’s August. 7 telephone call to Nixon, ‘dema:
" Repub can’and ‘possibly:even Democratic-leaders.. - g & pardon,-was taken by Haig.”During their’ convesr
- _fcre a pardon”could be orwould be granted fion Haldeman said he could “send Nixon to jail™ if
-necessary for Ford and Nixon to reach an agree-. - idn’t get it—a tactic designed to frighten Haig rather t¥
‘ { “to-blackmail Nixon. If Haig was to convey to Nixon Hal.
an’s request for pardon with ‘the proper urgency, H
would have to understand what-a powerful figure Hal
-yman was. Nothing would convey-this to Haig more eff
ftively than the kind of power Haldeman had--a: pov
coxxduf,:&d by the same-men who would settle the detaxls 'jbased on knowledge which could-be fatal. (The- first rep
surro ding-the pardon' ‘Becker, MxHer, and ergler e~ NQf this conversation came from-Alexander Haig one mot
: “ after Gerald Ford took offices a day later; the White Hon
the key-to tmderstandmg the reaI sxgmﬁcance cf denied that a “blackmail” attempt had been made)

; : v Haig was frightened, and he refused to continue the

s tfié admznzstfatox’[‘zir ur;Sabiprn; head of the Gerzeral‘ \fersatton until leo:} s attorney ?ames St. Clair got on

Servicgs e “Administration}; may upon receipt of an appropriate - line (a fact the }Nhtte House did not deny). Haldems
written authorization- from the counsel 1o the President [Ford) . threat alerted Haig, and presumably others, to the very r
provm’e fora. it of cmgm ‘of the materials to - menace a desperate Haldeman posed to Nixon and 1o a

a location’ other than the-existing facility ", “provided however ~ one else who might have had- questionable deahngs w
_ that-no-diminution. of -the administrator's ‘responsibility to perxon conceivably including Gerald Ford.
tect-and:secure the materials from loss; destruction, unauthorized "7+ At the very least, Haldeman’s-request for a pardon v
copying,ior access by W“fho*‘fzed persons. is. aﬂ‘“‘fed b)’ said - 1}1 timed. Nixon's responses in the month preceding his1
temporary redeposit. : B i "L ignation were passive and deeply ambivalent.On the eve
“This¥provision, should Ford chooseto exercise it, would " his resignation; it is doubtful that Nixon could have ac
give him- effective control over any tapes and documents | aggressively enough to pardon Haldeman and the others
which could prove politically injurious to himself or to other | even himself, as Haldeman had urged him to do.
publicofficials. Under the terms of this provision, Ford may’ Moreover, a Nixon pardon of Haldeman, given the
retainrany tapes he wishes, and, “temporarily redepositing” . cumstances -under which Nixon was leaving office, il
them; keep them in the White House or-other secure lo- ~ conceivably have been contested. Friends of Halden
cation;~although He may not alter or-destroy them. At  say that Nixon refused to grant Haldeman a pardon beca
the president’s request, Buzhardt—with Haldeman’s help— “he didn’t want to queer his own pardon deal.”
would-be able to locate and segregate any tapes which he The problem, then, was how to defuse Haldeman. To t
did not want to return to Nixon. Perhaps just as important end, St. Clair, in the early afternoon of August 9, telepha.
fromr-Ford’s point of view, this provision does not clearly Haldeman’s attorney, John Wilson, and said, “T underst;
provide for Nixon’s continued access to tapes which are you have some papers for us.”” Wilson said that he did,.:
“temporarily redeposited” by Ford; it only guards such  asked if two hours would be too long totake in sending th
tapes against destruction, unauthorized access, or unautho over. St. Clair said that was all nght and Haldem:m s |
ized copying. It does not specify just who has access to | don request was sent to the White House.
them under conditions of “temporary redeposit”—a term so St. Clair's request for the papers can be seen only as
vague as to cover one day to ten years. (When asked to | attempt to pacify Haldeman, since pardon for Haldeman :
comment on this interpretation of paragraph ten, the spe-” others had already been rejected in the aftermath of Ha
cial prosecutor's office said it “would not dispute it.”) man’s telephone conversation with Haig. And, w
The balance of the agreement is intended to provide Nixon  Nixon went on television that night, he, of course, resig
and his agents with continued control of materials which do  without mentioning pardon for anyoue,
not affect Ford. But even a subpoena for this material would hen, shortly after assuming, office, Gerald Ford lear
be subject to Ford's compliance, as well as Nixon's. rom Haig the details of the Haldeman call; the significa
This single provision—paragraph ten—can have the effect_, fof Haldeman's threat—in view of his own pést dealings v
of making the entire arrangement for controlling the taiej Nixon and in terms of his own;future—cguld not have

o one should underestimate the courage bom'
desperation or the fear that the prospect of a I

.both Ford and.Nixon. In fact, the tapes agree-f’
‘negotiated-and -accepted by both parties before
details-of the: pardom were. settled By Fnday, Augnst 6,

a standoff, a carefully controlled stalemate in which the caped him. Although there were cal s between Ford

vital interests of each man would be protected. Not suf- ixon prior to Nixon's pardon, if. -  f
prisingly, this agreement is to continue in force for not less  to San Clemente-and-back.on Aufust-20. If Ford felt thr
than five nor more than ten years, a period which coincides ened by Haldeman and Nixon he would have to hold ou
with the longest possible incumbency of President Ford. both of them the possibility of a pardon. At Camp D:

Once an agreement on the tapes was concluded, a pardon =" April 29, 1973, Haldeman had had such private as
frn Nivan and Haldeman canld he oranted ances—from Nixon. who had renesed on them. Pri
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assurances, therefore, woulo.__. longer satisfy Haldeman,

.nor protect -Ford. Only a public statement on a pardon
. could be trusted to placate him. .-~

If Ford wanted.to give Haldeman and Nixon a public
assurance, showing that an important shift from his earlier
position on pardon had occurred (“The American people
wouldn't stand for it”), he could not have chosen a better
vehicle than his press conference of August 28, during
which he said’that he would consider a pardon for Nixon,

“but only after legal action-had-been taken. For obvious po--

omewhat. moderate posi-
ast had some cons;stency

sentence, it’'was-. Haldeman. On’ Fnday, August 30, Ford

search that- would have to: precede a pardon for-Nixon, *

On September 3, Ford's personal attorney, Benton Becker,
met with Herbert:Miller, Nixon’s attorney, to work out an

. agreement for ‘control of the tapes. When Benton Becker

was dispatched by Ford to San Clemente on Thursday, Sep-
tember 3, his instructions were to tell Nixon and Miller,
with whom he: traveled, that an immediate pardon was
*probable,”™ not.certain. In the laundered language of law-
yers, the inference would be unmistakable: g pardon would

be forthcoming as soon as, but no sooner t a

) a5 _sighne ixon. The tapes agreement was

“not just the first item on the agenda at the San Clemente

meeting; from Ford’s and Becker’s point of view, it was the
only item of consequence. What would remain to be dis-
cussed was not the pardon but the nature of the statement
that Nixon would make in accepting the pardon. An ad-
mission of guilt by Nixon would obviously help Ford with
congressional and public reaction. It is doubtful that Ford
really expected to get it. With the tapes agreement still un-
signed, Nixon could and did resist any attempt to elicit
from him a pubhc admission of guilt. Becker and Ford

gave in. t on Friday, Sep-
tember 6, and Becker flew back to Washingtori w1

next morning. On Sunday morning, September 8, Ford par-
doned Nixon. The wording of Nixon’s statement remained
nknown to Becker and Ford until Nixon issued it.

ent; at the same txme he had to give

ked his counsel, Philip Buchen; to undertake-the Iega! re-

“The agxeement on the tapes'and the pardon were sepa- ‘
- rate but linked<:in return-for an-arrangement for controlling -
the tapes, which would protect Ford’s vital interests, Ford -
would grant‘an‘immediate-pardon to Nixon and Haldeman.

q

Ford, nurt,_ I on consultation and compromise, con-
sulted with no one in granting the pardon—not even Jawor-’
ski. His aides were not asked for advice so much as told
what he intended to do—most of them oniy shortly before
he went to face the cameras. His old friends in Congress re-
ceived only last-minute notice. Ford could not consult with
anybody; for Ford to listen to compelling arguments against
the pardon at this time—and then to reject them—would

- only raise suspicions about his motives.

When Ford’s Press Secretary Jerald terHorst was in-
formed of Ford’s intentions, a day before the pardon, he
“let-Ford know that he ‘would have to resign. A terHorst
resignation over the pardon would be a severe blow to.
Ford’s new administration, but Ford could not afford to
=.compromise on the smallest detail; what he was about to do
was Nixon’s and Haldeman’s irreducible minimum. - -

On- Friday, Ford concluded the tapes agreement. Ford

pardoned Nixon-on.Sunday. A pardon for- Haldeman was .. :

all that was left undone. . .. 2t
as obvious that the best way to pardon Halde»
-would be-to include him in a general pardon. for:
e Watergate offenders. But that. would have ‘to-be’
for public and political reaction. On Monday, Sep- -
9, Jack Hushen, who had temporarily replaced..
‘terHorst as press secretary, announced that the administra~ -

}lOXI ‘Had under study a general pardon for all those involved

~Watergate. The congressional and public outcry that this."
‘proposal engendered rivaled the criticism -which accompa--
" nied the Nixon pardon. It must have become clear to Ford -

and to Haldeman that to proceed to issue a general pardon..
“for all the Watergate offenders would risk the undoing of the -
plan which had been carried out so successfully thus far. The
_alternative hit upon was not a

retreat from a general par-’
~“don, it was a change in rhetoric. Instead of pardoning all-
“those who were involved in Watergate, the White House."

- would now consider pardons for Watergate offenders on a

case-by-case basis. To have retreated any further would
. have-been unacceptable to Haldeman, who had to be satis-

" fied at all costs. That is where the matter stands now.

The question is, when will the political’ atmosphere per- -

~.{ mit Haldeman to receive his pardon? Before the trial? Un- -

likely. After the trial but before sentencing? Probable. After
tencing and before appeal" Most probable.. 7

ince. Nzxon s "trmmphant” departure from the‘
White House, few changes have taken place at San
Clemente and Key Biscayne. Nixon’s staff of 21, .
“which is paid for by Ford out of his own White
House maintenance fund, is roughly equal in size to Presic i}
dent Johnson's staff when he was in office. He has the use.- [§
of government transport, helicopters and jets, and free lodg--
ing at American embassies and consulates throughout the
world. All this in addition to his total annual 397,000 gov-

- ernmental pension, $§96,000 for his staff, and $100,000 worth

of:free office space. He has begun writing letters to heads of
foreign governments.

If Haldeman is indeed pardoned, the dimensions of
Nixon's and Haldeman’s power will become clear. The
steady procession of clients to the Western White House
will begin in earnest, particula fpﬁ those who have large -
problems which call for largg”#id exflensive solutions. We
will witness brokerage at thé.fational levEl'on a scale never
before thought possible; anﬁg‘f the conceB§ of politics are
national, the claims of comimrce are gl .

At Key Biscayne, which &%& has el ‘yet visited since
his departure from office, nothtng of cefisequence has been
altered. The detail of Secret Service men is still present, as
it is at San Clemente. Even the sophisticated presidential
worldwide communications system is being maintainad.
Everything is in readiness. —
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comply with the reporting and dis-
_ closure sections of [FECAL”

Publie disclosure and reporting of
inembership lists clearly cast a chill-
ing effect upon an individual’s right
{6 associate freely and to voice per-
sonal views through organizational

ties.

Title II delegates to enforcement
personnel wide discretion in the ad-
ministration of this.piece of legisla-

tion. Its provisions, however, as they

presently exist - “provide -inadequate
standards by which the supervisory
officers are to be guided, -leaving
open the possibility that these admin.
istrators * * * may * * * interpret Ti-
tle IIT so as to require disclosure state-
ments from groups and organizations
whose regulation is beyond the pur-
view of [FECA}."

A decls -ation of unconstitutionaiity
is a serious matter. Accordingly, it is
incumoent ugon this court “fo avoid
nnnecessary confrontations by at-
taching to the statute in guestion, if
at all possible, a construction which
is compalibie with its plain language,
consistent with the underlying ra-
tional and free from constitutional
teficiency.” It is our opinion “that the
contested operational language of Ti~
tle III is susceptible to a limited and
narrow construction which will at
once remove any chilling effectg * * *
as well as obviate the necessily of
this court having to invalidate the fi-
tle. Indeed, one cireuit cour‘r, has SC
held.”

In U.8. v. National Commxttee for
Impeachment, 469 F.2d 1135 (2nd Cir.
1972) the court avoided ruling upon
an acknowledged serious constitu-
tional question surrounding the lan-
guage of Iitle III by holding that an
advertisemnent, strikingly similar to
the one with which 'we are here con-
cerned, was in and of itself insuffici-
ent to classify the sponsor as a poli-
ical commitiee. “Noting thal the leg-
islative history surrounding [FECA]

- revealed that - ‘[clongressional con-
cern was with political campaign fi-
nancingz, not with the funding of
movements dealing with national
policy,” * * * the court promulgated a
dual statutory test limiting the reach
of Titie III: (1) the determinative
phrase ‘made for the purpose of in-
fiuencing, is to include only those ex-
penditures ‘made with the authoriza-
ticn or consent, express or implied, or
under the control, direct or indireet,
of a caundidate or his agents,” and
{2) Title IIT is apolicable ‘only to
committees soliciting contributions or
making expenditures the major pur-
vose of which is the nomination or
eiection of candidates’”

This court fuily agrees with the Sec-
ond Circuit’s reading of Title 1II1. Such
a gonseruction is in accord with the
poimary concern of FECA. —P?rkpr J.

~USDC DistCal (three-judge
court); American Civil Liberties Un-
ion, Inc. v. Jennings, 11/14/73.

Government Personnel

ATTORNEYS—

Acting Attorney General's discharge
of Watergate Special Prosecutor,
without finding of “extraordinary
improprieties 01 his part,” is illegal.

[Text] [The Acting Attorney Gen-
erall suggesis that the instant case
has been mooted by subsequent events
and that the court as a discretionary
matter should refuse to rule on the
legality of the Cox discharge, This
view of the matter is more academic
than reallstic, and fails to recognize

‘the insistent demand for some de-

gree of certainty with regard to these
distressing events which have engen-
dered considerable public distrust of
CGovernment, There is a pressing need
to declare a rule of law that will give
guidanece for future conduet with re-
gard to the Watergate inquiry.

While it is perfectly true that the
importance of the question presented
cannot alone save a case from moot-
ness, the congressional plaintiffs be-
fore the court have a substantial
and continuing interest in this litiga-
tion. It is an undisputed fact that
pending iegislation may be affected
py the ocutcome of this dispute and
that the challenged conduct of the
defendant could be repeated with re-
gard to the new Watergate Special
Prosecutor if he presses too hard; an
event - which © would undoubtedly
prompt  further congressional - ac-
tion.  This situation not only saves
the case from mootness, but forces
decision. |End Text]} o

The Department of Justice regula-
tion {hat set forth the dutles and re-
sponsibilities of the Office of Water-
gate Special Prosecutor provided that
he was to remain in office until a date
mutually agreed upon between the
Altorney General and himself. It also

~ provided that he “will not be removed

from his duties except for extraordi-
nary improprieties on -‘his part.” Less
than four months after the appoint-
ment of the Speeial Prosecutor, he
was fired, not for am exiraordinary
impropriety, but for insisting upon
White House compliance with a court
order that was no longer subjiect to
judicial review. Three dayvs after the
Special Prosecutor was dismissed, tha
Acting Atlormey General rescinded
the underlying Watergate Special
Prosecutor regulation. The issues pre-
sented are whether the prosecutor
was lawfully discharged while the
regulation was still in awistence, and,
if not, whether the subsequent can-
cellation of the regulation lawfully
zeeomplished his discharge.

- tles until ¥

[Text] It should first be noted that
Mr., Cox was nof nominated by the
President and did not serve at the
President’s pleasure. As an appointee
of the Atlorney General, Mr. Cox
served subject to congressional rather
than Presidential control. The Attor-
ney General derived his authority to
hire Mr. Cox and to fix his term of
service from various Acis of Con-
gress. Congress therefore had the
power directly te limit the circumn-
stances under which Mr. Cox could
be discharged and to delegate that
power to the Attorney General. Had
no such limitations been issued, the
Attorney General would have had the
authority to fire Mr. Cox at any time
and for any reason. dowever, he chose
to limit his own authority in this re-
gard by promulgating the Watergate
Special Prosecutor regulation pre-
viously described. It is seitled beyond
dispute that under such cireum-
stances an agency regulation has the
force and effect of law, and is bind-
ing upon the body that issues it » * *

Even more directly on poiné, the
Supreme  Coust has twice held that
an executive department may not gis-
charge one of its oificers in a man-
ner inconsistent with its own regula-
tions conecerning such discharge. See
Vitarelli v. Seaton, 359 U.B. 3533
(1859); Service v. Dulles, 354 U.S. 363
(1957). The firing of Arcnibald Cox in
the absence of a finding of extraordi-
nary impropriety was in clear viola~-
tion of an existing Justice Depart-
ment regulation having the force of
law and was therefore illegal.

Defendant suggests that, even if
Mr. Cox's discharze had been unlaw-
ful on October” 20, the subsequent
abolition of the Office of Watergate
Special Prosecutor was legal and ef-
fectively discharged Mr. Cox at that
time. This contention is also without
merit. It is true that an agency” has
wide discretion in amending or re-
voking its reculations. However, we
are once again confronted with a situ-
ation in which the Atforney General
yoluntarily limited This otherwise
broad authority. The instant regula-
tion contains within its own termns a
provision that the Watergale Special
Prosecutor (as opposed {0 any par-
ticular occupant of that office) will
continue to carry out his vesponsibili-
ne consents to the termina-
tion of that assignment. This clause
can only be read as a bar to the total
abolitian of the Office of Watercate
Special Prosecutor without the Special
Pmsecutor’.—; consent, and the couvrt

2es no reason why the Attorpey Gon-
eml cannot by regulatiqn$mpse such
a lmitation upon WuHself an& his
SUCCEss0rs. ] <

Even if the court: were o ld
otherwise. however, it could notaun-
clude that the eiendant’s G- of
Getober 23 royouing the-repBlation

Pk W
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was legal. An agency's power to re-
voke its regulations is not unlimited—
such action must be neither arbitrary
nor unreasonable. In the instant case,
the defendant abolished the Office
of Watergate Special Proseculor on
October 23, and reinstated it less
than three weeks later under a vir-
tually identical regulation. It is clear
that this turnabout was simply a
ruse to permit the dischsrge of Mr.
Cox without otherwise affecting the
Office of the Special Prosecutor—a
result which could not legally have
been accomplished while the regula-
tion was in effeet under fae circum-
stances presented in this case. De-
fendant’s Order revoking the origi~
nal regutation was therefore arbitrary
and unreasonable, and must be held
to have heen without force or effect.

Plaintiffs have emphasized that
over and beyond these authorities the
Acting Attorney General was pre-
vented from firing Mr. Cox by the
explicit and detailed commitments
given to the Senate, at the time of
Mr. Richardson’s confirmation, when
the precise terms of the regulation
designed to assure Mr. Cox’s inde-
pendence were hammered out. What-
ever may be the moral or political
implications of the President’s deci-
sion to disregard those commitments,
they do not alter the fact that the
commitments had no legal effect, Mr.
Cox's position was not made subject
to Senate confirmation, nor did Con-
gress legislate to prevent illegal or
arbitrary action affecting the inde-
pendence of the Watergate Special
Prosecutor.

The Court recognizes that this case
emanates in part from congressional
concern as to how best to prevent
future Executive interference with
the Watergate investigation.
though these are times of sfress, they
eall for caution as well as decisive ac-
tion. The suggestion that the ju-
diclary be given responsibility for the
appointment and supervision of a
new Watergate Special Prosecutor,
for example, is most unfortunate.
Congress has it within its own power
{0 enact appropriate and legally en-
forceable protections against any ef-
fort to thwart the Watergale Iin-
quiry. The courts must remain neu-
tral. Their duties are not prosecufori-
al, If Congress feels that laws should
be enacted to prevent Executive in-
terference with the Watergate Special
Prosecutor, the solution lies in legisla-
tion enhancing and protecting that
office 2s it is now established and
not by foltowing a2 course that places
incompatiblie duties upon this par-
ticular court. | End Text]—Gesell, J.

- —-UsbC DistCol; Nader v. Bork,
11/14/73. :

Al-

Insurance ™
UNINSURED MOTORISTS—

Michigan law regquiring automobile
accident victim to give notice within
six months after accident of intent
to make claim against uninsured mo-
torist fund is unenforceable against
victim who files claim against such
fund and fails to give such notice un-
fess state official who administers
fund can show prejudice by such
failure.

The Michigan Motor Vehicle Acci-
dent Claims Act reguires that the
Michigan Secretary of State be noti-
fied within six months after the ac~
crual of a cause of action that an
automobile accident vietim intends to
‘make a claim against the Michigan
uninsured motorist fund. The victim
in this case filed a claim but failed to
give - such -notice, and the Michigan
Secretary of State’s. motion for ac-
celerated judgment was granted.

|Text] [Eilven though some no-
tice requirement may be permitted, a
particular provision may still be con-
stitutionally deficient, We must con-
sider the time specified in the notice
for an extremely short pericd may bhe
unreasonable. Whatl period is reason-
able in part depends on what purpose
the nofice serves. Because we cannot
say with certainty what purpose the
legislature had in mind in providing
for this notice, we are not prepared
to say that the six month period pro-
vided by this statute is unreasonable
as a matter of law.

The faillure to give notice may re-
“sult in prejudice to the fund accord-
ing to whatever reason justifies the
notice reguirement. Whenever the
Secretary claims to have been preju-
diced by the lack of notice, he should
be afforded the opporiunity to show
such prejudice.

"While we decline to declare that the
notice requirement of ¥ 18 is consti-
tutionally defective, we hold that oniy
upon a showing of prejudice by fail-
ure to give such notice, may the claim
against the fund be dismissed. {End
Text|—Kavanagh, J.

Brennan and Coleman, JJ., dis-
sent. o

—~Mieh SupCt: Carver v, McKernan,

10/17/73. .
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Master and Servant
RESPONDEAT SUPERIOR—

Attorney’s client is not liable, un«
theory of respondeat superior,
injuries resulting from -automob
aceident that occurred while atis
ney, in inftoxicated condition, »
driving home after represeniing clit
at trial.

The client employed the altorr
to represent him at a trial being cc
ducted some 150 miles away from t
attorney’s office. Pursuanf to t
employment, the attorney drove
own automobile to the site of -
trial where, during the morning,
tried the case. What the attorney
that afternoon is nof known, but
is agreed that he performed no ot

services for the client. That eveni

while returning to his home, the
torney was involved in the aceid
out of which the present controve
arose. ‘ :

The relationship between an att
ney and his client s, under Kar
law, one of agency to which the g
eral rules of agency appiy. Thus, tt
was a prineipal and agent relafi
ship befween the client and the
torney wherein the atiorney was
client's agent in matters respec
the litigation. Bowever, the fact t
there was an agency relationship
tween the attorney and the ci
does not necessarily lead to the ¢
clusion thatf, under the doetring
respondeat superior, the client is
cariously liable for the attorr
tortious  conduct foward the injy
parties. The liability of a principls
his agent’s negligence s conbre
by o defermination as to whethes
the time of the negligent act,
agent was engaged in furthering
principal’s business to such a de
that the principal had the “righ
direct and conirol” the agent's at
ities, If there was no right to &
and control, the principal is nol
cariousiy liabie for his agent's
tious conduct.

At the time of the accident,
attorney was not engaged in ine
therance of his ciient’s busines
such a degree that it could be
that the client has the rignt to 4
and conirol the altorney's phy
conduct, The client, according t«
stipulation of fact, had ro righ
divect or coniror the acttorney's ¢
room activities; if he had no
to direct the aitorney’s court
activities, even iess did he ha
rizht to direct or control the a
ney's homeward journey. The a
ney was free to go.where he de:
by whateyep means he chiose. Ac
inely, thée7client s not wicani
Hable forthe consequences of th
torney's nifsconduct~MMeWillian

~-CA 10; “Brinkley v. Farmers
vator Mutual Insurance Co., 10/
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Taxation

NONRECOGNITION TREATMENT

Sums business received under in-
surance coniract that provided for
fixed per diem paymenis whenever
specified causes suspended business
operations, and also provided that
insurer could reduce payments when-
ever business’ per diem net profits
plus fixed charges, for preceding 12
months, fell below fixed amount are
ordinary income not eligible for In-
ternal Kevenue Code Section 1033
nonrecognition treatment.

[Text] An insurance contraet pro-
vides for per diem payments of 35%
dollars whenever specified causes sus-
pend business operations. The con-
tract also provides that the insurer
can reduce the per diem coverage
whenever the insured’s per diem net
profits plus fixed charges, for the
preceding twelve months, fall below
35x dollars.

Section 1033 of the Internal Reve-
nue Code of 1954 provides, in general,
for the nonrecognition of gain when
all of the proceeds of an invoiuntary
conversion of property are used to
purchase gualified replacement prop-
erty.

Treas. Reg. Sec. 1.1033(a)-2{c)(8)
provides as follows: “The proceeds of
a use and oceupancy insurance con-
tract, which by its terms insured
szainst actual loss sustained of net
profits in the Dbusiness, are not pro-
ceeds of an involuntary conversion
but are income in the same manner
that the profits for which they are
substituted would have been.”

If an insurance contract insures
against a lost property right (i.e., the
right to use properiy), nonrecogni-
tion treatment under Section 1033 of
the Code is available with respect to
the proceeds if the requirements of
Seetion 1033 are otherwise satisfied.

Flaxlinum Insulating Co., 5 B.T.A. 676 -

(1928), acq., 1942-2 C.B. 7, Piedmont-
Mt. Alry Guano Co.,, 3 BT.A. 1009
(19261, acq., 1942-2 C.B. 15. But, if the
insurance contract insures against
lost profits and fixed charges, the
proceeds are ordinary income, and
noarecognition treatment under Sec~
tion 1033 i3 not available. Maryland
Shipbuilding and Drydock Co. v. U8,
409 .24 1363 (CtCls 1969); Interna-
tional Boiler Works Co., 3 B.T.A. 283
119281, acq., V-2, CB. 2 (1928).

In the situation described above,
the insurance contract insures against
tost profits and fixed charges because
it permits a reduction of the coverage
based on profits and fixed charges
experience. Thus, the insurance is de-
signed to reimburse the taxpayer for
4 loss of net profits and fixed charges.

Accordingly, under the policy de-
scribed above, insurance proceeds will
be ordinary income, and nonrecogni-

Al
tion treatment under Section 1033 of
the Code will not be available.

The BService does not follow the
decision of the United States Court
of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit in
the case of Shakertown Corp. v. Comr.,
277 P.2d 625 (CAS 1960), reversing
T.C. Memo 1959-22, which held that
the nonrecognition provisions of Sec-
tion 1033 of the Code were available
with respect to the proceeds of an
insurance contract similar to the one
described above. [End Text]

—IRS; Rev.Rul. 73-477, 11/5/73.

United States

ATTORNEYS—

Office of Waterzate Special Prese-
cution Force, directed by Special Pros-
ecutor appointed by Attorney Gen-
eral, is established.

The Office of Watergate Special
Prosecution Force shall be under the
direction of the Special Prosecutor.
The Specia] Prosecutor is assigned the
following specific functions: to con-
duct any kind of legal proceeding,
civil or ecriminal, that U.8, Attorneys
are authorized by law to conduct,
and to designate atforneys to conduct
such legal proceedings; to approve or
disapprove the production or disclos-

“ure of information relating to mat-

ters within his cognizance in response
to court orders; and, to exercise the
authority vested in the Attorney
General relating to immunity of wit-
nesses in congressional proceedings.
The above listing is illustrative, and
is not intended to limit the authority
of the Special Prosecutor in any
manner.

The Special Prosecutor shall have
full authority for investigating and
prosecuting offenses arising out of
the unauthorized entry inte the
Democratic National Committee Head-
quarters at the Watergate, offenses
arising out of the 1972 presidential
election, allegations involving the
President, the White House staff, or
presidential appointees, and any other
matters that he consents to have as-
signed to him by the Attorney Gen-
eral.

| Text] In exercising this authority,
the Special Prosecutor will have the
greatest degree of independence that
is consistent with the Attorney Gen-~
eral’s statutory accountability for all
mattars falling within the jurisdiction
of the Depariment of Justice. The
Attorney General will not counter-
mand or interfere with the Special
Prosecutor’s decisions or actions. The
Special Prosecutor will determine
whether and to what extent he will
inform or consult with the Attorney
General about the conduct of his
duties and responsibilities. In " ac-
cordance with assurances given by

the President to ihe Attorney Gen-
eral that the President will not exer-
cise his constitutional powers o ef-
fect the discharge o0f the Special
Prosecutor or to limit the indepen-
dence that he is hereby given, the
Special Prosecutor will not be re-
moved from his duties except for
extraordinary improprieties on his
part and without the President's
first consulting the majority and
the minority leaders and chair-
men and ranking minority mem-
bers of the Judiclary Committees
of the Senate and House of Fep-
resentatives and asecertaining that
their consensus is in accord with his
proposed action. [£nd Text]

—Justice Dept., Order No. 551-73, -

11/7/73.

News Noie

JUDICIAL CIRCUITS

The Commission on Revision of the
Federal Appeliate System, in its pre-
liminary report, recommends the ad-
dition of two new federal judieial
circuifs. Under the commission’s pro-
posal, the Ninth Circuit, which today
includes nine western states and ex-
tends from Alaskas to the Mexican
border and from Hawall to ¥daho and
Montana, would be split into two new
circuits. Arizona, Nevada, and the
two southern judicial districts of
California, which include Los Angeles
and San Diego, would be placed in a
new Twelfth Circuit, while the new
Ninth Circuit wonld include the
northern and "eastern districts of
California as well as the other states
in the present Ninth Circuit

The present Fifth Circuif, which
includes Florida, Alabama, Georgia,
Mississippi, Louisiana ang Texas, will
also be fashioned inlto two new cir-
cuits., Three different plans for re-
alignment remain under active con-
sideration. Under the first plan, one
citcuit would include Florida, Ala-
bama, and Georgia, and the other
would include Texas, Louisiana, Mis-
sissippi and the Canal Zone. The
second plan wounld put -Mississippi
with Florida, Alabama and Ceorgia,
thereby creating a iwo-state circuit
of Louislana and Texas. The third
plan is similar, except thalt Arkansas,
which is presently ian the Eignth
Circuit, would be placed in the Lou-
isiana~-Texas Circuit.

Senator Roman L. Hruska, Chalr-
man of the Commission, requests that
any comments aidi sttgsestions be
addressed to thg ¥xecutivé Divector
of the Commissjgn, Professo® A. Leo
Levin at 209 Couit of Claim§ Build-
ing, 717 Madison Place, N Wash-
ington, D.C, 20005‘&\ v

T
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' Eﬁective date~—~This w.«er shall be-
come effective on October 25, 1973,
(See. 409(c) (1), ‘72 Stat. 1’3’80, (21 Usc 348
(e)(1}}.) . .
Dated Octsber 18, 1973. .
- SamD. Fmye, -
Assoczate Commissioner for
Compliance.
{FR Doc.73-22609 Fﬂed 10—24—73,8 45 am}

o A PART 121—-——FOOD ADD'“VES
Subpart F—Food Additives | Resultmg

From Contact With Containers or Equip-. - - =
ment and Food Add:tnfes Otherwxsq :

Affectmg Food . r
e Smnzm& Som'xmws L

The Commissioner of Food and Drugs,
having evaluated the data in a petition
(FAP 3H2923) filed by West Chemical

Products, 42-16 West St., Lonhg ISland

City, N.Y. 11101, and other relevant ma- -,

“terial,. concludes that. the food additive

- regulatlons (21 CFR Part 121) should:
~ -be amended, as set forth below, to pro-
.. vide _for the use of isopropyl aicohol as
‘an optxonsl adjuvant, rather than as g -

required ingredient, for sanitizing foed-
processing equipment and utensils that
- contact food.

_ 'Therefore, pursua.nt to provisicm of
_ the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic
*Act (see. 409(c) (1), 72 Stat. 1786 (21

- TS.C. 348(c) (1)), and under the au-

thority delegated te the Commissioner
(21 CFR 2.120), §121.2547 is amended in
- paragraph (b),(s) to read as follows:, -
§ 121.2547 Sanitizing solutions, Lo
’ . x ~*'7 ==.5’—_ .
(h)y = » ¢ S K
L (5) An agueous’ so}ui:ion contaizﬁncr
elemental -Jodine, hydriodic acid,
nonylphenyl) - GMmege-hysroxypoly (0Xy~
ethylene) (complying with the identity

prescribed in § 121.2541(¢) and baving a~

meaximum average molecular weight of

748). and/or polyoxyethylene-polyoxy- N

‘propylene block polymers (having a min-

imum  average molecular - weight. of -

1,900).- Additionally, the aqueous solu-

_Yion may contain isopropyl alcohol as an;;

N opt:xonal ingredzent

e
":‘;,«,x * . < tf

Any person who will be ad?ersély af~ ~

" fected by the foregoing order may af any
time .on or before November 28, 1973,

file with the Hearing Clerk, ¥ood. and

Drug . Administration, Rm. 6-88,. 5600

~ Fishers Lane, Rockville, Md. 20852, writ- .

ten objections thereto. Objections shall
show wherein the person filing will be

- adversely affected by the order, specify.
with particularity the provisions of the -

order deemed objectionable, and state
the grounds for the objections. If a hear-
ing is requested. ihe objections shall
state the issues for the hearing, shall be
supported by grounds facfually and
legally suffcient to justify the relief
sought, and shall inciude a detailed de-
seription and analysis of the factual in-
formation intended to be presented In
support of the objections in the event
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1973,
Dated O*tober 2 3, 1973 :
/ Rosms: . Bonx

R R L R W R L PN

RULES AND REbULAT!é};fS

tha.t 8 hearmg is held. Obsectio._,may be
aecompanied by a memorandum or brief
in support thereof. Six copies of all doc-
uments shall be filed. Received objec-
tions may "be seen in the above office

during working hours Menday thmngh.

Friday.

- Effective date —This order shall be~~ .

come effective on. October 25, 1973.
(Sec 408(c} (1), T2 Stat 1‘786 (21 USC 34.8

Dated October 18, 1973 .
L Sm:D me

: Assoczate smmzsszcnerfor
i e e oo Commplianee.

Im Doc.T3-32611 Filed 10-2&-‘7': 8:45 am]

. Title 28—Judicial Administration.

CHAP‘TER }--DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ,

[Order No.. 540—?3}

yAkT O—ORGANIZATION OF THE -
" DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE -

Abohsh’rzen% of Office of Watergate Speual:

Proser.:z..t:on Force .
This order

me by 28 U.S.C. 508, 510, and 5 U.8C.

301, the- Ofiice of Watergate Special’

Frosecution Farce is abolished. Accord~
ingiy, Part 0 of <hapter I of Title 28,

.Code of Federal 5 xmlatzons Js amended' ’

as follows:
- 1. Section 0.1 of auhpart A, which hst.s

“ the organizational units of the Depart~

ment, is amended by deleting “Offce of

Watergate Special Prosecution Forge,”

2. Subpart G-1 is revoked.

Order No. 517-73 of Moy 31, 1973,
Order No. 518-72 ¢f May 31, 1973, Order -

No. 525-73 of July 3, 1973, and Order No,

: 531—73 of July 31, 1978, are revoked. -

Tms order is effective’ as of October, 21,

.  Acting Attorney General.
[m Doc 73*&2824 Filed 10-24-173; 8:45. am)

[Order No. 4?~7‘3}

" PART 0—ORGANIZATION OF THE
~ DEPARTME:IT OF JUSTICE

Subpart W-—Additional  Assignments of
Functions and UDesignation of Officials
To Perform the Duties of Certain Offices

in Case of Vacancy, or Absence Therein
“or in Case of Inability or stqua 1ﬁcatmn
© ToAct , .

DEISIGNATING Ot‘”"cmz.s TO ACT AS
ATTORNEY GENTRAL

This order amends the Depariment
regulations designating officials of the
Department of Justice to act as Attorney

-General in case of a vacancy in that

Office,

By virtue of the authority vested In
me by 28 U.S.C, 508, paragraph (2) of

abolishes the Oﬁice of“
Watergate Soecw‘ Prosecution Force. .
The functions of tv at Omce revert bo the
- Criminal Division - :
By virtue of the- authonty vested in

4330 pm.” S

JL i (Sec. 108, 83 Stat;zz ;SO'U.SC.A App
SLoaze)

§ 0.132 of Subpart W of Part 0 of Chap-
ter I of Title 28, Code of Federal Regula~
tzons is amended, to read as follows:

§ 0.132  Designating officials to perform
the functions and duties of certain
oﬂ‘ices in ease of vacancy themm. i

a) In case of vaca.ncy in the office of
Attorney General, the Deputy Attorney
General shall, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 508,
perform the functions and duties of angd
act as- Attorney General. In .case of

. vacancy in both the office of Attorney

General and the Office of Deputy Attor-

- ney General, the following officials shall
- perform the functions and duties of andg

‘act as Attorney Generzl, in the fouow-

: ing order of succession:

(1) Solicitor General = - -
£2) Assistant gt;omey Genem}. Crim

~inal Division

_(3) Assistant Attorney General, Anti-

: l., frust Division

(4) Assistani Attomey Genera.} CIVJJ

" Rights Division

(5) Assistant Attorney General Omce
of Legal Counsel AL

(8) Assistant Attomey General Tax
Division ' |

D As«is’cant Attorney General, Lanc
and Natural Resources Division

_ Dated Oc‘cober 23, 1973. 7

Roserr H, BORK,
T Acting Attorney General.

. [FR Doc.73-22825 Filed 10-25-73;8:45 am}' .

Title 32——National Defense
CHAPTER XIV--RENEGOTIATION BOARD

_SUBCHAPTER B—RENEGOTIATION BOARD
REGULATIONS UNDER THE 1951 ACY

© <PART 1472—CONDUCLT OF
© 0 RENEGOTIATION ..

Hoiirs of Business S
. Section 1472.6(e) (%) Hours of busmess

e

" is amended by deletmc, the phrase “8:20
- aam. to 5:00 pn.” and inserting in neu

thereof  the phrase

,“8 00 8.z, te

' Dated‘ chber 19 1973,

Chairmaen.” : A
[m Doc ?3~22712 Piled 10-24-73;8:45 am]

Tetle 41—Public Contracts and Property
Management

CHAPTER 3—DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH,
EDUCATION, AND WELFARE  ..:
,PART 3-3-—PROCUREMENT BY
- © NEGOTIATION

. stceﬂaneous Amendments
Chapter 3, Title 41, Code of redera}
Regulations, is amended as set forth
below. The purpose of these amendments
is to establish policies and procedures

relative .to ~the issuance of letter

. contra,cts. .
It is the ge polwx of the Depart»
QEdncatxo‘ﬁ and Welfa.re

ment of B

s,
ks
v ‘\J 22,

*yga~

7
G

S “




“war \,E“lte, ali offenses arlsing oub of £irs
1672 Presidantial Election for which the
spocial Prosecutor deems 1L necessary and .
supToptiate to sssuame responsibility, allega-
-irms involving the President, members of
e VWhite House staif, or Presidential wp-
gointees, and any. other matters which he
“wiwnts to have assigned to him by the
Aviopney General,

In particular, the Speclal Prosecutor shall
nave il authorlty with respect to the above
matters for:

Coaducting proceedings befors grand jurles
=nfl pny other Investigations he deem.s
J2COSBATY

Reviewing all docnumentary evidence avall-
able from any sour:e, 83 to which he shall
hate [ull access;

Dstermining whether or not to contest the
assertion of *Erecutive Privilege” or .sny
other testimonial privilege;:

Determining whether or not application
should be made to any Federal court for a’
grant of Immunity to any wiiness, con- -
sistently with applicable statutory require-
ments, or for warrants, subpoenas, or other
court orders;

Doewding whether or not to prosecute sny
individusl, firm, corporation or. grgup of
individuals; .

Inisiating and conducting prosecutions,
framing lodicuments, filing informations, apd
handling ail aspects of any cases within his
jurisdiction (whather -Initlated befors  or -
after his assumption of dutles), including
any oopeals;

Coordinating and directing tke activities
of all Department of Justice persounel, in-
¢luding United States Attomeys;

Dealing with and appesring before Con-
sressions! committees having jurlsdiction
over any aspect of the above matters and
dstermining what documeants, information,
and aosistance ahall be provided o such com~
mitrees.

Ia exercising this suthoritv. the Speclal
Prosecotor will have the grestest degree of
indapendence that is consistent with the At~
tor11°3 Greneral’s statutory accountabllity for -
ali matters falllng within the jurzsdiction
of the Department of Justics. The Attorney .
Genatai witl not countermand or Interfere
with the Special Prosecutor's decisions; or
actlons., The Special Prosecutor will dg
mine whether and to what extent he wifl in- ~
form or consult with the Attorney. Geperal
aboutb the conduct of his duties and }espan- -
sihilittes, In accordance with sSUrances
given by the President to ths Atioiney Gen-
eral that the President will nel exercise his
Constltutional powers {0 Fect the- discharge
ot the Speocial M or to mit the in-
dependencd that he 1s hereby given, the Spe~
clal Prosecutor will not be removed from his
Guties except for extraordinary impropries
s on his part and without the President's
fitst consulting the Majority and the Mi~
rority Lesders and Chalrmen and ranking
AMinority Members of the Judiciary Commit.
wes of the Senate and House of Representa-
tives and ascertaining that their consensus
13 In accord with his propcesed action,

S1AaFv¥ AND RESOURCE SUPPORT -

1. Selection of Stef. The Spectal Prosecutor
Lall have full authority to organize, select,
and hire bis own staff of attorneys, investi-
Liors, and supportlng personnel, on a full or
thae basis, in such numbers and with
quallieations ss he may reasonably
quw s may reguest the Assigtant Af
torneys (General and other ofiicers of the Dew
z’»- ment of Justice Lo assign such person-

sl and to proyide such other assistance as
he may reasonsbly require. All versongoel in
ho Department of Justice, lncluding United

&

RULES AND REGULATIONS

States Attorneys, shall cooperate to ths full-
ast extent possible with the Speclal Prose-
cutor.

2. Budget. The Speclal Pmectltor will be
provided with such funds and facilities to
earry out his responsibilities as he may rea~
sonably requirs. He shall have the right to
submit budget requests for funds, positions,
and other asslsiance, and such requests shall
receive the highest priority.

3. Designalion gnd responsibility. The per-

sonnel acting as the stad and assistants. of .

the Special Prosecutor shall be kunown a3 the
Watergate Speclal Prosecution Force and
shall be reagonslble only to the Special
FProsecutor.

Continued responsibilities of Assistant At-
torney General, Oriminal Division, Except for
the specliic investigative and prosecutorial
duties assigned o the Special Prosecufor,
the Assistant Attorney General in charge of
the Criminal Division will continue to exer-
ecisa all of the duties currently assigned to
him,

Applicable departmental policies. Except as
otherwise herein specified or as mutually
agreed between the Special Prosecutor and
the Attorney General, the Watergate Special
Prosecution Force will be siibject to the ad-
minisirative regulations and policies of the
Department of Justics.

Public reports. The Special Prosecutor may
 Irom time to time make public such state-

ments or reports as he deems appropriate

and shall upon completion of his assign~

ment submlt a final report to the appropri-

ate persons or entitles of the Congress.
Duration of assignment. The Special Prose-

cutor will carry out these resgonaibllities,

with the full support of the Department of -

Justice, unill such time as, In his judgment,
he has completed them or until a date mu-~
tually agreed upon beiwesn the Atltorney
General and himsell.

[FR Doc73-23693 Filed 11-6-73;8:45 am]

Title 32-—National Daicnse

CHAPTER Vil-—~DEPARTMENT OF THE
- AR FORCE

‘BUBCHAPTER G—BOARDS

- PART BSSWFERSONNEL REVIEW BOARDS

BPART A---A{R FORCE BOARD OF
CORREGTION OF MILIYARY RECORDS

Force Board for the Correction of Mill~
tary Records to correct certain milifary
records.

Subpart A, Part 885, Subchapler G of

Chapter VII of Title 32 of the Code of
- Federal Regulations is ameunded by add-

ing a new paragraph (a) () to § 865.12,
to read as follows:

§ 865.12 - Action by the Board,

(3) > * &

(5 Delegat~on of authority to correct
certain military records. :

- (1) The Air Force Board for the Cor~
rection of Military Records is authorized
to take final action on behalf of the Sec-
retary of the Air Force, under 10 US.LC.
1552, in approving the correction of
military records, provided such action:
() Has been recommended by fhe Air
Staff; (B is agreed to by the Board;
and (¢} falls into one of the following
categories:

(1> Restoration of leave unduly

charged to applicanis,

TR )

) Promotion of applcanis retroac-
freely, who would have been promoted
during regular promotion cycles but were
inadvertently or improperly excluded
from consideration during such cycles;
and adjustment of their pay accounts
accordingly.

(3) Promotion of applicants to grades

held immediately prior to reenlistment

who were inadvertentiy or improperly‘

reenlisted in a lower grade.

A
subsistence
thereto,

(3)-
the Retired Serviceman’s Family Protec-
tion Plans and the Survivors Benefits
Plan where failure to elect to participate
was through no fault of the applicants.

(ii) The. Executive Secretary of the
Board, after assuring compliance with
the above conditions, will announce the
final action on applications processed
under this subdivision, -

: to applicants entitled

Awards of basic allowance for.

Aunthorizing partxcipanon under' '

. * LR B B

(10UsC.1852) o

By order of the Secretary u! the Alr
Ferce

o Smmmr 1. Roazx'rs,

- Colonel, USAF, Chief, Legisla~
tive Division, Office of the
Judge Advecate General.

{FR Do0¢.73-23875 Filed 11-6-73} 8:45 am)

Title 32A—National Defense, Appendix

CHAPTER Xill—-ENERGY POLICY OFFICE .

EPO REG. 1-—MANMDATORY ALLOCATION

PROGRAM FOR MiJDLE DibTiLLATE’

- FUELS
Remaoval of L:mntatmn Imposed by Term

“Customs Territory of the United Siates™

EPO Rez. 1 for the Mandatory Alloca~

Recrster of Qotober 186, 1973

ber 1, 1973. The purpose of this amend-

- ment is to amend the definilion of the

" tion Pregram for Middle Distillate -
" Puels was published in the Froerac .
(38 FR
- 28660) which became eﬁective Novem-~

This amendment is added to show:
“the delegation of authority to the Air’

term “State office” and ths refersnce in =

the secilon entitled “Coverage of Pro-

gram?” in those regulaticns to remove the

Yimitation imposed by the term “customs
territory of the Unitzd Strtes.” Under

general Leadnete 2 to the Tariff Schied-
ules of the United States (18 USLC,
1202), the Virgin Islands are excluded
from-coverage under the Program.

. the meaning assigned that phrase by -

Because of the emergency nature of '

present and prospective shortages of

- middle distillates, it has been determined
that this amendment shall become effe»- .

tive on November 7, 1973.

EPO Regulation 1. {38 FR 28680) is

amended as follows:

1. In Section 2 Definitions ‘the term
“State ofiice” is amended by deleting the
phrase “within the Custormns Territory”
which follows the word “territories” so
as to make the definition read as follows:

“State office” means, with respect to sach
of the 50 States, the District of Columbis,

-
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. \\\io submil

o abhijections regarding the Losed
AT ‘u&,.Alldlkt. N’

o n)O;c?buiOl’b ha.ve bheen recelved nund
tire procosed azmendment s hereby
adopted without change and is seb forth
bealow,

This amendment shall be effective 0001
Coralt., January 3, 1974,

This acendment is made under the
oubaority of section 307(a) of the Fed-
‘eral Aviation Act of 1938 (49 US.C.
13433, and of sec. 6{c) of the Depariment
of Transportasion Ach (39 UL.C. 18535
{e) .

Tasued 3t ‘Kansas City, \Ilsscuri on
Octoper 18, 1973, .

AL Comwn,'
Hrector, Ceniral Fegion.

In § 71.181 (38 PR 435), the following
transition area is amended to read: -

SreNcezr, Jowa

That alrspace extending upward Irorm 700
fz2et above the surface within a 3-mlle radius
of the 3pencer, Towa Muxnictpal Adrport (leul
tude $3°09°457" N., longitude 95711°30"° W.);
and within three miles each siée of the Spen-
cer VOR 320" radial, extending from the 5-
wmile radius zone to 8 miles northwest of the
VOR; within 3.5 miles each side of the Spen-
cor VYOI 128° radial, extending from the 5-
mile radins zone to 15 miles southeast of the
VOR; »nd that sirspace exieading upward
from 1.200 faet above the suriace within 4.5
raies northeast and 9.3 milles southwesi of
ine Spencer VOR 3207 radial, extending from
8.5 mies southenst of the VOR to 18. 5 miles
northwest, of the VOR; and within 5 wmiles
northeast and 9.5 miles southwest of the
Snencer YOR 128° radial, extending from 6.3
* ynitas aorthwest of the VOR to 225 miles
southeast of the VOR.

{¥R Dos.73-23600 Piled 11-6-73;8:45 am] .

;-\jxsoa.r‘e Docket Ney, 7&0&"”}

PARY 71—~DES‘G‘1AT;ON OF FEDERAL
;\lRWR‘fS, REA LOW ROUTES, CON-

SLLED AlRSPACL, AMD R:?ORTI
PO’N;.:»

Transition Area; Alteration

On Page 23338 of the Feos2AL HEGISTER
dated August 28, 1973, the Federal Avi-
atisn Administration published a notice
of proposed Tule making which would
amend 8§ 71.181 of the Federal -Aviation
Regulations 50 as to alter the fransition
area an 817, Loais, Missouri

Interested persons were, g‘ven 20 days
written commeqto, zgestions
of ol ECMD&"SS_.I»E?I'C}IR?' the proposed
amendmeant,

Mo oblections have been received and
e pronosed amendment is  hereby

adopied withoub change and is set forih -

below,
This amendment shall be effective
2901 Gromut., January 3, 1974,
iz amendment is made nnder the
& k,my'wv »f section 3N7{s) of the Faderal
Lviarian Ant of 1958 49 UB.C. 1343,
sl oof aee. 30e) pl fhe Tepariment of
morabtion Ach (40 T30 1855{n) ).

1 Zansss City, Slissourt, on
Jomsr B OWWaALLs,
Ying Dirzcior, Centrel Ragion,
FIDARAL

Cedge of V-14N,

In § 71.181 (38 FR 4353, the follo -

transition area is amended 0 readi_-
Sv. Louis, MISSOURY
Thab alrspace extending upward Irom 760

fzet above ihe szurfzce within a 10-raile

radius of Lambert 5t Louls Intersational

Alrport  {latitude 88743750 N, logpgitude
S0°21°'55°" W), within 5 miles southsast and
8 miles nortpnwest of the Lambert 3t Louis
Internatiocal Alrport runway 2% ILS local-
izer noriheast course, extending from the 10~
mile radius ared to 12 miles northeast of
the ruaway 24 OM; within 5 mlles southwest
and 9 miles northeast of the Lambert
St. Louis Interoational Alrport runway 12R
ILS lscalizer northwest course; extending

romy the runwag 128 OM o 12 miies northe
west of the OM;
3o Charles Smartt Alrpori, St Chracles, Mis<
souri (lasitude 33°5600°" N., longitude 907~
25007 W.); within an 3-mile radius of Civic
Memorial Airpert.- Alton, Illinois {(latitude
38°53°30 N, longiiude 50°03°00 W.); and
toab alrspace extending upwarsd from 1,200
fest above the surface within a 33-mile
redius of 3t. Louls Incernatlonal Alrport;
within 6 miles southwest and 9 miles north-
east of e St. Louis YVORTAC 328° radial,
extending from the 33-mile radius area Lo
38 miles nocthwest of the VORTAC: swithin
5 miles northwest and 8 miles southenst of
the Margland Heights VORTAQC 243°¢ radial,

ztending irom the 33-mile radius ares to
19 miles southwast of the VORTAC; within
the area bounded ou the west and northwast
by the east and southeast edge of V-143, on
the northeast by the 33-mil2 radius area, on
the sputheast by the northwest edge of
V-238* and on the south by the north
boundary of V-28: within a 40-mile radlius
of Scott AF3 (Iatituds 38°33°30"” N, longi-
tuade 39°31°05°7 W.);
overlying the Statz of Mlinols; that airspace
extending upwavrd from 2,500 feet M3L
within the area bounded on the northewst by
-the southwest edge of V-333, on the east by
the Missouri-Illinois boundary, on the south
by the north edge of V1530 and on the west
by the east edge of V-3; and that alrspace
extending upward from 4,500 fzeb MSL

_within the area bounded on the north by the

south edge of V-83, ot the northeast by the
southiwest edge of V-9, on the south by the
north esdge of V-T2, on the west by a line
5 milles wesh of and paratlel to the Bt Louis

VORTAC 200° radial, apd on the northwest,

by the southeast edze of V-233; within the
area boundad on the north by the south edge
of V-12, on the sontheast by the northwest
nn the southwest by tre
northeast edge of V-173, and on the north-
west by a lins 5 miles sontheast of and parsle
1el to the Jeifsrson Clty, Missouri VOR 041*
radial, and within the area bounded oa tha
northeast by the soucthwast edge of V52 and
the Missourl-illineis boundary, on the souih

g the north edge of V—-IN, and on ihe northe
west by the southeasi edga of V-33.

[T Doc73-23606 Flied 11-8-73;8:45 am}

_ Title 28—-Judiciat Administration
CHAPTER —DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
 [Craer 551-73]

PARY O—DRGAMIZATION DF THE
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC

3y

Zstadiishing the Office of Warargate
Prosecution Forge

opé:{,:‘:a}

v virtve sf the nanhority ¥ ﬂ«fed inme
: 510 and 5 UUB.C0 20,

inbiisned in the De-
Woler~

T oo
IR

,-:-’(3

Ly
went of Jusiice, 108 Ofice of
Zpecial Prosecution Yoros

ty pa

A, RS ey

YO 38, v

within & 7-mile radius of

axcluding the portion

D AN IDNESDAY, NOVEMEZR 7

headed by a Director. Accordingly, Part
O of .Chupter ¥ of Title 28, Ccds of Fed-.
eral Regulalions, is amendsd ns folloyw

1. Section 0.1¢(z) which lisis the ore
ganization units of the Depaciment, is
amended by adding “Orfice of Watergate
Special Prosecution Force” Immaedistely
after “Office of Criminal Justice”

2. A new Subpart G-1 is added im- -
mediately after Subpart G’, ‘to ree.d 23
follows: . =

Subpart G-1-—Office of Watergale Saacza.l
Prosecution Force .
Sec. « o
6,37 Cenaml functions. . T
0.33 Special functious. ) - DS

AvrTHoriry: 28 U.S.C. 309 510 and’3 USC

30%.. s

Subpart G-‘Tz——-('}mce of Watergate Snoc.ax‘ :
Prosacution Force

§0.37 General funclions.
The Cilice of Watergale Special

P:c,s._h .

ecution Force shall be under the diree-

tion of a Director who shall be the.
Special Prosecutor appointed by the At~
torney Cenerazl. The duties and respope.
sibilities of the Spacial Prosecutor are s’
forth in the attached avpendix below
which is incarpu'afed and made o payh
hereof. = -

§ 0.28 Qpeaf'c Danctions,

The Special Prosecutbor is assmr*ed and
delegated the folio
tions with respect {0 matters specified in

this subpart: . e

(a) Pursusnt to 28 U.S.C. 515(a}, is
conduct any kind of legal procesding,
civil or crirvpinal, including zrzngd jury
proceedings, which United Staies atlor-
neys are authorized by law io crmd‘zm,v
and to designate aptiorneys to conduci
such legal proceedings. ) -

(b)Y To approve or disaporsve tha Dro-
duction or disclosure of informaiion or
Hles reiating to matiers within his ¢og-
nizanpce in response to 3 subpeena, srder,
or other demand of 2 court or other au- .
thority, (See Part 16(B) of this chaptery
. (¢) To apply for and to exerc
authority vested in the Attorney General -
under 18 U.8.C. 5005 relating o immu-
nity of witnesses in (:.’cnffr.~cx s:oml Do~ .
ceedings. . . o

The lsting

of these speciie fzm fiong It

for the purposz of Hlusirating tgv a::v :

taority enlrusted to the Special Lrose~:

cutor and is nob intended to Umit in ary
anner his authority to carry 135

func jons and responsibilities,

Dated

LA
il

. November 2, 1977,
Fozerr H. Soss :
Acting Atiorrey Generci

ArpIVort—Ireorss AND RESpowsrsiiinss oF
THRE SPICIAL PROSECUTOR

T:‘se ,sv»'ma. Prosecutor. Theve (s appoinicd
tae Atterney Cenerai. withi 1 the B2
14 of Tustice, a Sp
“e Afrorner Ceasenl

s el provid

owing specific fune- - -
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342 JUDICIARY CONGRESSIONAL STAFF DIRECTORY

SUBCOMMITTEE ON COURTS, CIViL LIBERTIES,
AND THE ADMINISTRATION OF JUSTICE

Robert W. Kastenmeier {D. -Wis.), Chairman
MAJORITY: (5 D.) Representatives Kastenmeier, Danielson, .Drinan, Owens and Mezvinsky.
MINORITY: {4 R.) Representatives Railsback, -Smith (N.Y.), «Sandman, .and Cohen.

Bidg. Room Ext.
Fuchs, Herbert Counsel RHOB 2137 3926
Mooney, Thomas E. Associate Counsel RHOB 2137 6504

SUBCOMMITTEE ON CRIME

John Conyers, Jr. (D.-Mich.), Chairman
MAJORITY: (5 D.) Representatives Conyers, Sarbanes, Rangel, Thornton, and Owens.
MINORITY: (4 R.) Representatives Cohen, Fish, Froehlich, and Maraziti.

Bldg. Room Ext.
Barboza, Maurice A. Counsel - RHOB , 2137 1695
Gekas, - Constantine

. " Associate Counsel - . RHOB 2137 6906

SUBGOMMITTEE ON CRIMINAL JUSTICE /. ﬁ&[wo ¢ :

William L. Hungate (D.-Mo.), Chairman
MAJORITY: (5 D.) Representatives Hungate, - Kastenmeier, Edwards {(Calif.), Mann, and

Holtzman.
MINORITY: (4 R.) Representatives Smith (N.Y.), Dennis, Mayne, and Hogan.
Bldg. Room Ext.
Hoffman, Herbert E. Counsel RHOB 2137 " 6406
Pauley, Roger A. - Associate Counsel RHOB 2137 7195

'v'pSUBGDNMITTEE ﬂl MGIATI#I.- CITIZENSHIP, AND INTERNATIONAL LAW
: Joshua Eilberg (D..-Pa.), Chaiman .. .

MAJORITY: (5 D.) Representatives Eilberg, Waldie, Fiowers, Seiberling, and Holtzman.:.. '

MINORITY: (4 R.) Representatives-Fish, Railsback, Wigagins, and Hogan.

: . Bldg. Room Ext.
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JAMES LAWRENCE MILLER

ATTORNEY-AT-LAW
SUITE 734 CIRCLE TOWER . 5 EAST MARKET STREET . INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 42604 . TEL. (317) 638-8240

October 6, 1974

Honorable Philip W. Buchen
Counsel To The President
The White House

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue
Washington, D.C. 20600

Dear Mr. Buchen:

The attached Memorandum is submitted with the
thought 1t might be of assistance to President Ford in
his forthcoming appearance before the Congressional Committee
and in future dealings with the media on the s»bjectﬁ of
Ex-President Nixon's pardon. /

Trial Staff, U.S.Attorney
Southern District, Indiana;
1955-1961;

Instructor, Criminal Pro-
cedure, School of Law
Indiana University (1946);

Prosecuting Attorney,
51st. Judiclal Circult
Peru, Miaml County, Ind=
iana, Two terms (1938-40;
1941-42);

Executive Director, Commiss:
ion - Judicial and Cong-
ressionalSalaries, Washing-
D.C. (1953=54);

Legal Staff, U.S.Senate
Judiciary Committee, 1953~
1955;

Administrative Assistant
U.S., Senator, Wm.,E, Jenner
(Indiana), 1952 Campaign.

*x*%¥Don't let this mislead you. -~ I'm Just another '"Country
Lawyer" practicing in a big city.



MEMORANDUM

I. PURPOSE:
The media has blown Watergate completely out of
proportion by its unrelenting drumfire of propaganda.
Hatreds have been enflamed in too many hearts to a
’degree seldom recorded in American history.

A strong antidote  of simplification is in order.

II. THE REASONS FOR CRIMINAL PROSECUTION:

There are only four reasons why anyone should be

subJjected to criminal prosecution: |

1. To punish the individual in event he is
convicted;

| 2. By so‘doing, to discourage him from committ-

ing subsequent crimes;

3. To deter other from committing criminal
offenses; and '

4, To protectvsocietwaromthaertoup?rSOnvand

property:by:the criminal's incarceration.

I1I. THE OBJECTIVES OF CRIMINAL PROSECUTION HAVE BEEN ACHIEVED:

Punishment:

Richard Nixon is the only President in this Country's
history fordéed to resign the Presidency. - He has suffered
emotionally to the point his health is impaired even perhaps
to the polnt of fatality. |

Deterrent To Self:

If Richard Nixon has committed a crime or criminal
offenses it was solely because the office of the President
afforded him this opportunity. He willl never occupy this post
again. Therefore the opportunity to commit future crimes of

this category have been deﬁied him in perpetuity.
| s5. €Ok
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Deterrent To QOthers:

If any future President is foolhardy enough to risk
the plight of shame and humillation Richard Nixon has already
sulfered, then neither would thepossibility of criminal pProg-

ecution deter him.

Protection of Society By Incarceration:

Crimes generally may be divided into two types of
offenses: |
- Against the person; and
- Against property.
Richard Nixon has Eommitteﬁ no offense agalnst the
person. No ‘oneé has been inJjured. No 1ife has been taken.
His removal from offlice has stripped him forever of
the péweb to commit any further offenses against property through
the use of Presidential power.

A

IV, THE PEOPLE HAVE A RIGHT TO KNOW THE WHOLE TRUTH 2

In the present Watergate Trilals the Special Prosecut-
or repre senting the Department of Justice has ample opportunity
to reveal the whole fruth to the American People.

© Coupled with this, Judge Sirica haé almost unlimited
latitude to make 'personal inquiry of each wiltness so long as
the rights of the Defendants are not prejudiced.

President Ford's pardon of Ex-Presldent Nixon did not
embrace perJjury commitbed 1f he 1s a witness in these Watergate
proceedings. 4

If these avenugs of ihformation are not sufficient
to enable those interested in revealing the WHOLE truth§ th%n
- nothing would be gained by the independent proaecuhion'of Richgrﬁ

Nixone o . RN



Page 3.

o IN CONCLUSION:

| Every obJjective for which Criminél Prosecution
of an individual has been designed has been achieved, even
without resort to the process,

If another crime had been committed which in every
aspect save one was 1dentica; to the Watergate episode, the
medla would scarcely have given it passing attention.,

The one differentiating element was the position
of power heid by those who perpetrated the crime., This one
element enabled the media to blow the offense entirely out
of proportion,

Preslident Ford does not need to apologize to any-
one for his action in pardoning Nixon.

When an issue as controverslal as this arises,
it 1s lmpossible to satlsfy every segment of Soclety.-
Therefore, the President should stand firm by the position
hls conscience originally dictated, and place this epiSode
in its proper perspective and get'on with the more important
problems of the Nation,
Supmitted

3




' October 8, 1974

MEMORANDUM FOR: JACK MARSH
" FROM:1 WILLIAM E, TIMMONS
SUBJECT: Hungate Subcommiiteo

Sen. Hugh Scott (R-Pa) urges the President put off
his appearance before subject committee until after
the election. He argues jury selection and congres«
sional recese present ample reason to defer this
hearing. He feels you can negotiate this with

Mr. Hungsate.

‘ cc%hil Buchen
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WATLERGATE SPECIAL PROSECUTION FORCE
United Siates Department of Justice
1425 K Street, N
Washington, D.C. 200035

October 12, 1974

Honorable William B. Saxbe /
The Attorney General
U. S. Department of Justice

. Washington, D. C.

Dear HMr. Sarybe:

Along with my letter of resignation, I beg
to hand you herewith a copy of our latest interim
report which reflects the principal activities of
the Special Prosecutor's office to date.

™o of the results achieved relate to the
mandate dirccted to this cffice to investigste
allegaticns involving the President. Both are
without precedent.

One 1is the extensive grand jury report on the
involvement of Richard M. Nixon in Watergate cover-
up activities, preparced for the grand jury by this
office and sent to the House Juliciary Committee

© last March, after successful litigation through the
trial and appellate courts. While the grand jury
report, which presented the chaln of evidence in
detail, has not been published, I am informed that
it served as a major guide for the staff and members
of the Committee in the development of the presenta-
tion leading to the Articles of Impeachmnent.

The second involved the successful litigation
of a trial subposna for tape recorded evidence in
the hands of the President of the United States. The
Supreme Court's unanimous decision supporting the
subpoena of the Special Prosecutor compelled the
former Presidsnt to release, among others, the tape
recording of June 23, 1973, which served as a fore-
runner to his resignation.




Although not appropriate for comment until
after the sequestering of the jury in United States v.
Mitchell, et al., in view of suggestions that an
indictment be returned against former President
Richard M. Nixon questioning the validity of the pardon
granted him, I think it proper that I express to you ry
views on this subject to dispel any thought that there
may be some relation between my resignation and that
issue.

As you realize, one of my responsibilities, not
only as an officer of the court, but as a prosecutor
as well, is not to take a position in which I lack faith
or which my judgment dictates is not supported by prokable
cause. The provision in the Constitution investing the
President with the right to grant pardons, and the
recognition by the United States Supreme Court that a
pardon may be granted prior to the filing of charges are
so clear, in my opinion, as not to admit of doubt. Philip
Lacovara, then Counsel to the Special Prosecutor, by
written memorandum on file in this office, came to the
same conclusion, pointing out that:

. "...the pardon power can be exercised at
any time after a federal crime has bkeen
committed and it is not necessary that
there be any criminal proceedings pending.
In fact, the pardon power has been used
fregquently to relieve federal offenders of
criminal liazbility and other penalties and
disabilities attaching to their offenses
even where no criminal proceedings against
the individual are contemplated."”

I have also concluded, after thorough study, that
there is nothing in the charter and guidelines appertain-
ing to the office of the Specmal Prosecutor that 1mpalrs

or curtails the President's free exercise of the Sl TREgN

constitutional right of pardon. {% <
I was co-architect along with Acting Att01nGY> j?

General Robert Bork, of the provisions some theorists v

now point to as inhibiting the constitutional pardonlnq
power of the President. The additional safeguards of
independence on which I insisted and which Mr. Bork, on
former President Nixon's authority, was willing to grant
were solely for purpocses of limiting the grounds on which
my discharge could be based and not for the purpose of
enlarging on the jurisdiction of the Special Prosecutor.



Hearings held by the Senate Judiciary Committee
subseguent to my appointment make it clear that my
jurisdiction as Special Prosecutor was to be no
different from that possessed by my predecessor.

There was considerable concern expressed by
some Senators that Acting Attorney General Bork, by
supplemental order, inadvertently had limited the
jurisdiction that previously existed. The hearings
fully developed the concept that the thrust of the
new provisions giving me the aid of the Congressional
"consensus" committee were to insulate me from ground-
less efforts to terminate my employment or to limit
the jurisdiction that existed. It was made clear,
however, that there was nc "redefining” of the juris-
diction of the Special Prosecutor as it existed fronm
the beginning. There emerged f£rom these hearings
the definite understanding that in no sense were the
additional provisions inserted in the Special Prosecutor's
Charter for the purpose of either enlarging or diminish-
ing his jurisdiction. I did stress, as I argued in the
Supreme Court in U. S. v. Nixon, that I was ¢iven the
verbal assurance that I could bring suit against the
President to enforce subpoena rights, a point upheld
by the Court. This, of course, has no bearing on the
pardoning power.

I cannot escape the conclusion, therefore, that

"additional provisions to the Charter do not subordinate

the constitutional pardoning power to the Special
Prosecutor's jurisdictional rights. For me now to
contend otherwise would not only be contrary to the
interpretation agreed upon in Congressional hearings -=-~
it also would be, on my part, intellectually dishonest.

Thus, in the light of these conclusions, for me
to procure an indictment of Richard M. Nixon for the
sole purpose of generating a purported court test on
the legality of the pardon, would constitute a spurious
proceeding in which I had no faith; in fact, it wouléd be
tantamount to unprofessional conduct and violative cof
ny responsibility as prosecutor and officer of the court.



Perhaps one of the more important functions
yet to be discharged relates to our final report.
It is contemplated that this report will be as all-
encompassing as the authority granted this office
permits, consistent with the prosecutorial function
as delineated by the American Bar Association Standards
for Criminal Justice. While this report will be cast
in final form subseguent to my term as Special Prosecutor,
I will be available to the authors for such contributions
and consultations as they deem advantageous.

You are aware, of course, of the position this
office has taken regarding access to former President
Nixon's White House materials for all remaining
investications and prosecutions. Legislation now pend-
ing, if cnacted, will solve the problem. If not enacted,
I shall continue to be available, to whatever extent ry
successor desires, for counseling on reaching a solution
to this problem so that all relevant materials will be
forthecoming.

My Deputy, Henry Ruth, and rost of the other
merbers of the staff have worked together since the
creation of the office. Mr. Ruth has a familiarity with
all matters still under investicgation as well as those
still to be tried. He has been in charge of all "miik
fund" matters, in view of my recusal. I trust that you
will not mind my offering the suggestion that he be
‘given consideration to serve as my successor, thus
permlttlng the unfinished natters to continue without
interruption.

Sincerely,

gfiam?g%éﬁévﬁdayéﬁf.
~

LEON JAWORSXKI
Special Prosecutor
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‘In Nixon Pardon

Washington StarTlews

Wednesday, October 16, 1974

Ford to Testify.
On Haig’s Role

By Aldo Beckman
Chicago Tribune

Pres1dent Ford will tell a House subcomxmttee
tomorrow that eight days before President Nixon’s
resignation one of Nixon's top aides asked whether
Ford would pardon Nixon if he resigned, accordmg to
White House sources.

The sources said yesterday that the approach was
made by Alexander M. Haig Jr., Nixon’s chief of
staff, who posed a hypothetical question to the then-
vice president. If Nixon decided to resign, could he
count on a full pardon and escape criminal prosecu-
_tion, Haig asked Ford.

- Ford will tell the House Judiciary subcommittee,
chaired by Rep. William Hungate, D-Mo., that he
made no promises to Haig, and refused to be part of
any deal that would trade a promise of pardon for a
presidential resignation.

NIXON RESIGNED on Aug. 8, effective at noon the
next day. On Sept. 8, Ford announced he was grant-
ing Nixon a full pardon for any crimes he might have
committed as president.

Ford also is prepared to testify that James St.
Clair, Nixon’s Watergate attorney, approached him
on Aug. 2, the day after his conversation with Haig, to
tell him of the damaging conversations on tapes the
Supreme Court had ordered turned over to the Water-
gate special prosecutor.

St. Clair told him, Ford will testify, that the conver-,
sations were so damaging that Nixon was certain to §

‘be mpeached convicted, and removed from office, if 4
he didn’t resign first. B

" THE FOLLOWING day, Ford left Washington on a
speaking trip through the South. Although Ford soft-
~ened his defense of Nixon, he did declare on several ¥
- occasions that he believed that Nixon was mnocent of
“~any impeachable offenses. s 8
In his subcommittee appearance Ford is not ex-
‘pected to discuss those statements or tell why he
“made them after receiving St. Clair’s information.
Ford’s appearance before the Hungate subcommit-
" tee, now set for 10 A.M. tomorrow, will be carried live
.on network television. It was delayed for one week,
‘ until after the jury in the Watergate cover-up trial
»was sequestered, so that his testimony would not v
¢ prejudice jury members.
" The hearing was called after the Ford pardon of
é Nxxon prompted repeated accusations that a deal had
; been made before the resignation — a charge that ¥
Ford has demed o :

o,
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;21;:;: By Richard.-1. Lyons )

0 m03 Washington Post Staif Writer

S0 President Ford’s historie

ML sppearance before a con-

g SE gressional subcommittee

i":(m:j Thursday will take place in

,}% a room.that has seen a lot

12108 of history this past year.

umolt It is Room 2141 of the

' o Rayburn House Office

1y Building, the meeting room

-8, of the House- Judwinry Com-

J123-a mittee. e

S48 P. ‘It was in this room that

‘xa?? Mr, Ford appeared nearly a =

1 we

(a

year ago at the first confir-.

mation hearing for a Vlce:f

President. -

And it was. in this room .

that the Judiciary Commit-<~
tee met for three months for -

deliberations that led to rec-
ommendations - that .- Presi-
dent. leon be impeached.

.1t -is. not a large -room:
There is space for about 200

‘chairs, tightly squeezed "to-
gether .after -the;television.;

cameras: have been:put in

lace:is Judicisry < Chairman 3 - ‘
get  Rodino: (D-N.J.)k-ref-  hereby requested to furnish - ,
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%5 %7 By Bob Burchette—The Washington Post

Rep.- Bella:- Absug - (D-N.Y.), whe .discovered an old
proeedure taget Mr Ford to testxiy, has 18 guestions.

ﬁ'e’*'; . knowledge Tof -any formal
> %+ criminal charges - pending

- e e

“United Siates 137

L. Did ¥ you or: your repre-f
sentatlves have '~ specific

against -Richard M: Nixon
prior | to--issuance:*of: -the :

these*eharges"

pardon}. If..se,. what.,were;.» ‘

'-2. Did - Alexander..: Haig:

/o//é /‘Z‘/j
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ber of Congress or Vice
President? -

4, Who participated ' in
these and subsequent discus-

sions or negotiations with

Ar, Nixon or his representa-

tives regarding a pardon,
and at what specifie times

and loeations?

5. Did you- consult vnth“»
Attorney . General - William™
. Saxbe or Special Prosecutor:
Leon Jaworski before mak--

‘forpesg ‘oS ST 5¢ FUBI

- ; s

nouncement of the pardon .

" made known to you or your
representatives %ﬁ To is

annodficement, and was it

'approved by you or ynur

Tepresei e
10. Did you receive any re.

port from a psychiatrist or

‘other physician stating that
- Mr. Nizon was it other than
good health?. If so,. please

prov;de such reparts
Here is the  text of the

possession or control relat
ing to any pardon’ whichy
may be granted to any per-}
son who is or may be charged}
or convicted of any offense
against the United Statesd
within the prosecutorial- ju.#
risdiction of the Office of}
Watergate Special Prcsecn-‘_
txon Force.

ing the decision to pardon*
Mr. Mixon and, if so, what >

§ facts and legal am:horitxes
H did ey ve 1o you?

Fou - consult - with “

'resolutwn snbmitted hy
Conyers -
Resolved, that'“the Presi~
- dent is dxrected to furnish
~ to the House the full and-
: the v}ce-pres{denhal ‘nomi-+ - complete  information- and -
R A nee: Nelson Rockefeller, be-:.-facts on~ which was: based
3% fore-making the-~ “decisiomr=* the decision. to grint 'a par:
88 and, ifs0, what facts and lew: - don:to Mr. Nixon, including:
t gal authorities dzd he - gmr <1 LAy " representations-
3 to you? ¥ : * made by or-on-behalf of Mr
) 7. Did= ymr“eansult thlr- Nxxontothe President.”. :
2 ]any gther attorneys or pro-* 2. Any mformation or
R fessors of law- before mak-. facts presented’ {5 the Presi-.
1ing the decision: and, if- so, " dent withr~ respect” ‘to° ‘the
¥ what facts or-legal authm-xd Mmentai or physieal health of

. i ties did they give to you? ,aMr Nixon, ~~x, "/

& ment of criminalguilt, and,
- ®if so, what-langnage -was

& suggested or° reguested by -
Rvon, your” representatives,

Hatives? Was any statement

8 he pardon, and, if so. please-
gorovide the suggested or re-
kquested language. -

3. Was the statement is-
tued by Mr. Nizon immedi-
fﬁely subsequent to an-

8, Did you or your rem
& sentatives ask Mr. Nixon to-—
g make-a confession or state-.

w3 Any information in pes»
session ot control - of “the
President . with ' respeet to -
- the offenses which were al..

'-levediy ‘committed by -Mr.

. Nixpon and for whwh a par-
g « don-was granted. -
AMr. Nixon, or his represent.”

"4 Any reprmﬂtaﬁm

-rnade by or ‘on behalf of the

dof anv kind requested from <
#Mr. Nizon in exchange for .

p

President to  Mr. Nixon-in-

connection "with a pardon
for alleged off’enses against’
the Urited States.-

- The .President is further
directed to furnish to the-
House the full-and complete
mformation and faets in his
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The Pardon o f Nixon
Was Timely, Legal,
Jaworski Believes

L J * L ]
He Says Nixon’s Acceptance
Clearly Shows His Guilt
And More Evidence Is Due

By KAREN J. ELLIOTT -
- Staff Reporter of THE WALL STREET JOURNAL
WASHINGTON —Special Watergate Pros-
ecutor Leon Jaworski sees nothing wrong
with President Ford’s decision last month to
pardon Richard Nixon. ‘

Mr. Jaworskl, talking publicly about.the
controversy for the first time, concedes that
the pardon prevented an indictment and
trial of Mr. Nixon. But he believes that suf-
ficient evidence has, or soon will, become
public to show conclusively that the former
President was guilty of obstruction of jus-
tice. - '

“The evidence will show he’s guilty, just
as much as a guilty plea,” the special prose-
cutor declared during an interview yester-
day in his sparsely furnished office here.
Next week, Mr. Jaworski is leaving the job
he has held for 11 months and is returning
to Houston to resume the practice of law."

The special prosecutor believes, further-
more, that both the offering of a pardon and
Mr. Nixon's acceptance of it clearly signify
his guilt:

*A pardon isn't just a beautiful docu-
ment to frame and hang on the wall. You
are offered a pardon only because it is be-
lieved you can be charged and convicted.
You accept it only if you want to be
cleared.” .

An All-Out Defense . !

_Mr. Jaworski’s attitude about the pardon
has been a subject of intense speculation
here for weeks. Many have assumed that
the special prosecutor, who® has gained a
reputation In Washington for toughness and
integrity, objected to the decision. It even
has been suggested in recent days that his
supposed anger over the pardon is what
prompted him to resign his post.

In fact, his statements yesterday
amount to an all-out defense of the most
controversial aspect of the pardon: its tim-
ing prior to a Nixon indictment and trial.
Thus, the Jaworski position -could have sig-
nificant political benefit for President Ford,
whose popularity with the public -has
dropped dramatically since he granted the
pardon. ‘

The special prosecutor said he has kept
silent on the pardon and on Mr. Nixon’s role
in the  Watergate -
cover-up for two rea-
sons: He wanted to
wait until a jury was
chosen and seques-
tered for the trial of
five of Mr. Nixon’'s
former top aides,
and he wanted to
wait until he had an-
nounced his resigna-
tion. All that ~has |
happened, and now
Mr. Jaworski is talk-
ing: There will be
more newspaper in-
terviews, and on
Sunday he is sched-
uled to appear on NBC's “Meet the Press"
program.

Mr. Jaworski denies that the pardon
prompted his resignation. He said in the in-
terview yesterday that he decided three
weeks ago to resign because he had com-
pleted what he has always considered to be
his primary task—outlining Mr, Nixon'’s role
in the cover-up. )

His own departure, he sald, won't slow
the investigations that the prosecutor's of-
fice is conducting into the milk-fund scandali
and into illegal political contributions by
corporations.  Action s expected soon

|

against other companies, he aald.

‘| have invoked his Fifth Amendment guaran-
' tees against self-incrimination, pleaded nolo

“Phe Best-Irepared Case” .
The special prosecutor said that evidence
to be presented during the current Water-
gate trial will further enmesh the former
President in the cover-up. Mr. Jaworski,
who won’t be participating in the prosecu-
tion, called it *‘the best-prepared case T've
been assocfated with.” .
Mr. Jaworski’s attitude about the contro-
versial pardon rests on the assumption
drawn from an early Ford news conference
that President Ford always intended to par-
don Mr. Nixon eventually. Thus, to Mr. Ja-
worski, all that is at issue is the timing of
the pardon. i .
Mr. Jaworskl Insists that if Mr. Nixon's
case had been allowed to proceed to indict-
ynent and trial, the public would have
learned nothing more about the former
President’s role than will come out in the
trial of his former aides. “It's a mistake to
pelieve there would have been more evi-
dence for the public if he had been tried,”
‘|Ithe special prosecutor said. :
“If he had been pardoned after indict-
ment, the public would have no new infor-
‘Iimation. If he had gone to trial, he could

contendere, or even pleaded guilty, anq w’e;
‘wouldn’t have learned any new details,
1 Mr. Jaworskl said.

The special prosecutor wouldn‘tr say

| whether he would have prosecuted the for-"
-\mer President if Mr. Ford hadn’t pardoned

‘| hypothetical situations now,” he declared.

gave mno consideration to doing anything

cover-up jury was sequestered,” he said. :°

Nixon investigation and on other aspects of.

thorizes its inclusion. Without such author-.
‘|ity, Mr. Jaworski believes, a prosecutor’
ilcan't ethically disclose evidence against a
man who hasn’'t been charged; Mr. Jawor-
skl has asked Congress for autharity to’
Jinclude such material in the report. B

‘INixon's role in obstructing justice, but the
difficulty arises in other areas where we
|didn’t bring charges,’” he said. The Water-
,|gate grand jury named Mr. Nixon as an un-
.{indicted coconspirator in the . obstruction of
justice for which his former aides are being-
tried. o

Mr. Jaworski Is turning philosophical as,
he prepares to leave for-a rest at his Texas-
ranch, where he will “watch the deer and
birds and think about something besides-
Watergate for-the first time in a year.”.
Watergate, he believes, has shown that the
American governmental system works.
‘“Here are top men in government who:
haven't been spared from investigation, ex-
posure and conviction,” he said.

But he isn't sorry to be leaving. “The-

volved in a national tragedy.”

v———————————

A major task still facing the special pros-. :
ecution force is a report to Congress on the |

the Watergate case. That report will ex- '
clude” much evidence against the former -
President unless Congress specifically au--

whole thing is a tragedy,” he sald. “And I’
don't get any satisfaction from being in..

him. “Nothing is served by talking about -

But Mr. Jaworski said that if the former
_ ‘| President had been charged, his trial
‘twouldn’'t have come for many months. *“We .

{with the former President until after the .

2

-

“We can paint a very full picture of M.i'.;

Sy
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THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

October 17, 1974

MEMORANDUM FOR: PHIL BUCHEN
FROM: KEN ILLAZARUS
SUBJECT: Supplemental Statement by the

President to the Hungate Subcommittee

As you know, the most damaging aspects of this morning's hearing
before the Hungate Subcommittee were the unanswered questions
posed by Ms. Holtzman and the likely adverse public reaction to them.

It is my opinion that a letter from the President to Chairman Hungate
responding to these questions should be sent and released before
6 p.m. today in order to make the morning newspaper cycle.

These questions will be raised again and it would be in the President's
best interest to have the answers available prior to any press treat-
ment of the Holtzman questions.

A draft letter is attached.

cc: Phil Areeda
Bill Casselman



DRAFT LETTER TO HUNGATE FROM THE PRESIDENT

Dear Mr. Chairman:

Due to the press of time during today's hearing before the
Subcommittee on Criminal Justice relative to the pardon of former
President Nixon, I was not afforded the opportunity to respond to
several questions posed by Ms. Holtzman. In order to complete the
hearing record of the Subcommittee in this respect, I am taking the
liberty of communicating my answers to those questions herewith.

Three of these questions involved the grant of the pardon to
the former President. Why was the pardon issued without some
specification of the crimes for which Mr. Nixon was pardoned? Why
was the pardon granted without obtaining any acknowledgement of guilt?
Did the pardon have the effect of infringing upon the public's right to

know the full story about Richard Nixon's misconduct in office?



22 Op. A. G, 36 (1898) indicates that a pardon is essentially

directed to the nullification of the legal consequences flowing from an

offense. Such an effect is not dependent on knowledge or enumeration

of the offenses involved. It is clear that the power of pardon may be

granted without an investigation of a prosecutorial nature to identify

the details of the specific offenses involved. Indeed, such an investigation

might be an abuse of the power (See Op. A, G, 359 (1820)).

Burdick v. United States 236 U, S, 79 (1915) states that a pardon

", . . carries an imputation of guilt; acceptance a confession of it"(at

95) and 11 Op., A. G, 227, 228 (1865) states: '"There can be no pardon

where there is no actual or imputed guilt. The acceptance of a pardon

is a confession of guilt, or of the existence of a state of facts from which

a judgement of guilt would follow, "



Rather than reducing the possibility of a full public airing of
the facts involved in "Watergate'', it is my understanding that the
pardon precludes the former President from refusing to testify as a
witness on Fifth Amendment grounds in any Federal trial dealing with

the facts of this matter, ,_/jMurphv v. Waterfront Commission, 378

U.S. 52, 79 (1964)/

One question called for an explanation of the fact that the
services of Mr., Benton Becker were utilized in conjunction with the
staff support provided to me by my counsel, Mr. Philip Buchen. In this
regard, I can only say that I have been acquainted with Mr. Becker for
some time. I have known him to be a thoroughly professional man of
considerable talent and, at the time his legal services were rendered
relative to the pardon, I had no knowledge that he could be the subject

of any criminal investigation whatsoever.




I would also like to address myself to the agreement between

the General Services Administration and former President Nixon with

respect to certain materials, including the tape recordings which have

been the subject of a great deal of notoriety. Paragraph 8 of that

1y

agreement provides that the tapes "'. . . shall be destroyed at the time

of Mr., Nixon's death or on September 1, 1984, whichever event shall

first occur."

It is my understanding that this provision is intended to

govern destruction only after September 1, 1979. Although certain people

have misconstrued this section as a potential loophole, I can assure you

that in this and every other respect, steps have been taken to eliminate

any possibility of destruction or alteration of any of these materials,

Finally, I would like to respond to the unfortunate inference that

was case to the effect that the intent behind the tapes agreement was to

insure that any possible tape recordings between myself and the former



President would never come out in public., I have never considered
myself to be a secretive individual. My life has been an open one of
public service. I trust that you and the members of your Subcommittee
will see no need to question my motivations in protecting these materials
for reasons of the highest national interest and not out of fear of
reprisals,

Let me again state my appreciation for the opportunity to
appear before you and your colleagues. I trust that my appearance
marked the beginning of a new and healthy period of cooperation between

our respective branches of government.
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Octobar 17, 1974

MEMORANDUM FOCR: RON NESSEN
FROM: REN LAZARUS
SUBJECT: Xifert of the Acceptance of 2 Pardom

It is my understanding that quesiions regarding the lagal effisct of
the scceptance of a pardomn with respect to the qusstion of guilt
have besn referred to you.

In response to these questions you might want to make rafm
to the following authorities:

Burdick v. United States, 236 U.S. 79 {1915 states that a
pardon “...carries aa imputation of guilt; scceptancs a
~ _confession of it. " (at 95)

bd

11 Op. A, G. 227, 228 {1865) states that "There can be no
pardon where thers is no actual or imputed guilt. The
acceptance of a pardon is a confession of guilt, or of the
existence of a stale of facts from which a judgment of guilt
would follow. ®



THE WHITE HOUSE

" WASHINGTON

October 18, 1974

MEMORANDUM FOR: BOB LINDER!

FROM: JACK MA.RSI}

Would you please order one dozen copies

_of the report by the Subcommittee on the’

Committee of the Judiciary for President
Ford's appearance on October 17, 1974,

cc: Bill Timmons
Phil Buchen \/
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THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

October 25, 1974

MEMORANDUM FOR: KEN LAZARUS

FROM: LIZ O'NEILL

Larrj Speakes told me you could provide
information re. acceptance of a pardon
being an admission of guil® -- so

I can reply to this letter.

Thank you.
























THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

December 14, 1974

Dear Congressman Hungate:
This letter is in response to your letter of December 10, 1974,

My understanding is that the Subcommittee on Criminal Justice
of the Committee on the Judiciary had anticipated when you
wrote your letter devoting time on December 19, 1974 to an
appearance by former Special Prosecutor Leon Jaworski.

That appearance was intended in part, I am told, to cover
events within his knowledge leading to the pardon of former
President Nixon. Now I have been advised that Mr. Jaworski
will not be appearing at any time during the remaining days of
the 93rd Congress.

I believe it inappropriate for me to try arranging an appearance
by General Alexander Haig to give testimony on the same subject
prior to adjournment of this session of the Congress when without
other desired testimony, no disposition can be made of current
legislative proposals relating to this subject. Also, on De-
cember 15, 1974, General Haig will first assume the position of
Supreme Allied Commander, Europe, and this event will un-
doubtedly require his immediate and, for some period, contin-
uous attention to new responsibilities in Europe.

Your letter does suggest in the alternative that General Haig
make an appearance before your Subcommittee early in the next
session of Congress. AlthoughI am not in a position to give you
a definite response, I believe a determination should await a
review of circumstances at that time, including what legislative
proposals may then be pending before your Subcommittee.
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I trust that the foregoing will serve your purposes until such
time as there can be common review of the situation in January.

Sincerely,

Philip ,a Buchen
Counsel to the President

Honorable William L. Hungate
Chairman

Subcommittee on Criminal Justice
Committee on the Judiciary
House of Representatives
Washington, D, C. 20515

¢c: Honorable Henry P. Smith, III
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December 10, 1974 |

Pnilip W. Buchen
Counsel to the President
The White House
Washington, D.C.

Dear Mr. Buchen:

The Subcormittee on Criminal Justice of the Committee on
the Judiclary has several legislative proposals pending before
it requiring the full and complete disclosure of facts relating
to the pardon of Richard M. Nixon, Watergate and Watergate
related matters.

To assist the Subcommittee in its consideration of these
proposals, the Subcommittee requests that Alexander Halg appear
before it to testify on his knowledge of and involvement in the
events leading to the pardon of the former President.

President Ford's testimony before the Subcommittee on
October 17, 1974, was essential and of great assistance to the
Subcommittee in developing the facts concerning the issuance
of the pardon. President Ford's testimony, however, highlighted
the significant role played by General Halg in the pardon dis-
cussions. Subcommittee Members believe, therefore, that General
Haig's testimony is vital to the complete and final resolution
of the pardon issue.

The Subcommittee Members are aware of the Senate Armed
Services Committee's recent vote to hear the testimony of General
Haig at the beginning of the 94th Congress. The Subcommittee is
hopeful that General Haig's schedule will permit him to appear
before the Subcommittee at some mutually convenient time during
the remaining days of the 93rd Congress or in the early days of
the next session of Congress.

incerely yqur

.

Chairman

WLH/bts Subcommittee on Criminal Justice
cc: Hon. Henry P. Smith, III
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Counsel to the President
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Washington, D.C.








